
1 

Pwyllgor Cynllunio, Trwyddedu Tacsis a Hawliau 
Tramwy 

 
Man Cyfarfod 
Hybrid meeting - Zoom - County Hall 
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod 
Dydd Iau, 7 Gorffennaf 2022 
 
Amser y Cyfarfod 
10.00 am 
 
I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch â 

 

 
 

Neuadd Y Sir 
Llandrindod 

Powys 
LD1 5LG 

Carol Johnson 
01597826206 
carol.johnson@powys.gov.uk 

 Dyddiad Cyhoeddi 
 

 
Mae croeso i’r rhai sy’n cymryd rhan ddefnyddio’r Gymraeg. Os hoffech chi siarad 
Cymraeg yn y cyfarfod, gofynnwn i chi roi gwybod i ni erbyn hanner dydd ddau 
ddiwrnod cyn y cyfarfod 
 

AGENDA 
  

1.  YMDDIHEURIADAU  
 
Derbyn ymdiheuriadau am absenoldeb.  
 
  

2.  COFNODION Y CYFARFOD BLAEOROL  
 
Awdurdodi’r Cadeirydd i lofnodi cofnodion cyfarfod blaenorol y Pwyllgor a gynhaliwyd 
ar 28 Ebrill 2922 ac 16 Mehefin 2022 fel cofnod cywir.  
(Tudalennau 1 - 12) 
  

Cynllunio 
 

  
3.  DATGANIADAU O DDIDDORDEB  

 
(a) Derbyn unrhyw ddatganiadau o ddiddordeb gan aelodau mewn perthynas ag 
eitemau sydd i'w hystyried ar yr agenda.  
 (b)  Derbyn ceisiadau gan aelodau i gofnodi eu haelodaeth ar gynghorau tref neu 
gymuned lle cafwyd trafodaeth ar faterion sydd i'w trafod gan y Pwyllgor hwn.   
(c)  Derbyn datganiadau gan Aelodau'r Pwyllgor y byddant yn gweithredu fel 
'Cynrychiolydd Lleol' mewn perthynas â chais unigol sy'n cael ei ystyried gan y 
Pwyllgor.  

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus



(d)  Nodi manylion aelodau'r Cyngor Sir (sydd ddim yn aelodau'r Pwyllgor) a fydd yn 
gweithredu fel 'Cynrychiolydd Lleol' o ran cais unigol sy'n cael ei ystyried gan y 
Pwyllgor. 
 
  

4.  CEISIADAU CYNLLUNIO I'W HYSTYRIED GAN Y PWYLLGOR.  
 
Ystyried adroddiadau’r Pennaeth Eiddo, Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd ac i 
wneud unrhyw benderfyniadau angenrheidiol ar hynny.  
 
(Tudalennau 13 - 14) 
  
4.1.  Diweddariadau 
 Bydd unrhyw ddiweddariadau yn cael eu hychwanegu i’r Agenda, fel 

Pecyn Atodol, lle bynnag bo hynny’n bosibl cyn y cyfarfod.  
 
 
  

4.2.  20/2130/FUL Fferm Newbridge, Meifod, Powys SY22 6HS 
 (Tudalennau 15 - 72) 

 
  

4.3.  22/0564/FUL Siop Spar, 1 Irfon Terrace, Llanwrtyd LD5 4RB 
 (Tudalennau 73 - 86) 

 
  

4.4.  22/0510/FUL Nant Hirwaun, Moelfre, Croesoswallt, Powys SY10 7QW 
 (Tudalennau 87 - 108) 

 
  

5.  PENDERFYNIADAU'R PENNAETH EIDDO, CYNLLUNIO A GWARCHOD Y 
CYHOEDD AR GEISIADAU DIRPRWYEDIG  

 
Derbyn rhestr o benderfyniadau a wnaed gan y Pennaeth Eiddo, Cynllunio a 
Gwarchod y Cyhoedd o dan bwerau dirprwyedig, er gwybodaeth.  
(I Ddilyn) 
  

6.  PENDERFYNIAD AR YR APEL  
 
Derbyn llythyron penderfyniadau ynglyn ag apeliadau gan yr Arolygydd Cynllunio.  
(I Ddilyn) 
  

Tacsis a thrwyddedau eraill 
 

  
7.  DATGANIADAU O DDIDDORDEB  

 



Derbyn unrhyw ddatganiadau o ddiddordeb gan Aelodau yn ymwneud a’r eitemau 
canlynol ar yr agenda.  
 
  

8.  COFNODION IS-BWYLLGORAU TRWYDDEDU TACSIS  
 
Awdurdodi aelodau’r Pwyllgor a oedd yn cadeirio’r Is-Bwyllgor Trwyddedu Tacsis a 
gynhaliwyd ar 4 Mai 2022 i lofnodi’r cofnodion fel cofnod cywir.  
(Tudalennau 109 - 110) 
 
 



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



2022-04-28 Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE PLANNING, TAXI LICENSING & RIGHTS OF 
WAY COMMITTEE HELD AT BY TEAMS ON THURSDAY, 28 APRIL 2022 
 

PRESENT 
County Councillor K Lewis (Chair) 
 
County Councillors L V Corfield, L George, E M Jones, M J Jones, F H Jump, 
H Lewis, D R Price, P C Pritchard, G Pugh, D Selby, K S Silk, L Skilton, M Weale, 
G I S Williams, D H Williams, R Williams and J Wilkinson 
 

1.  APOLOGIES  
 

Apologies for absence were received from County Councillor E Vaughan. 
 

2.  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

The Chair was authorised to sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting 
held on 7 April, 2022. 

  
Planning 

 
 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

(a) There were no declarations of interest. 
 
(b) The Committee noted that no Member requested that a record be made of 
their membership of a Community Council where discussion had taken place of 
matters for the consideration of this Committee. 
 
(c) The Committee noted that no Member (who is a member of the 
Committee) would be acting as ‘local representative’ in respect of any application 
on the agenda. 
 
(d) The Committee noted that no Member (who is not a member of the 
Committee) would be speaking as the ‘local representative’ in respect of any 
application on the agenda. 

 
4.  PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE COMMITTEE  

 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Property, Planning and 
Public Protection (copies filed with the signed minutes). 

  
4.1 Updates 

 
There was no update report. 
  

4.2 21/1536/FUL Land at Trawscoed and At Orchard Croft, Llandrinio, 
Powys 

 
Grid Ref:   E: 328093 N: 317507 
 
Valid Date:   17/08/21 

Tudalen 1

2



2022-04-28 Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee

 
Community Council: Llandrinio and Arddleen Community Council 
 
Applicant:   Powys County Council Affordable Housing Team 
 
Location: Land at Trawscoed and at Orchard Croft, Llandrinio, 

Powys 
 
Proposal: Erection of 48 dwellings comprising 24 affordable 

homes at Trawscoed site and 24 open market 
dwellings at Orchard Croft site to include landscaping, 
sustainable drainage, car parking and all associated 
works. 

 
Application Type:  Full application 
 
In response to a question regarding the highway safety of children from the 
Orchard Croft development accessing the play area to the south of the highway, 
the Highways Officer advised that the percentage increase in movements to the 
play area did not require the provision of a pedestrian crossing.  He also advised 
that the Area Traffic Engineer had been consulted and had not raised issues 
regarding the current access. 
 
The Principal Planning Officer advised, in response to a question regarding the 
provision of a tree protection plan rather than a Tree Protection Order [TPO], that 
as there was no immediate risk to the tree, which was outside the development 
curtilage, a tree protection plan was sufficient. 
 
In response to a question regarding phosphates the Principal Planning Officer 
advised that as the development was outside the phosphates catchment of the 
River Wye, it was not an issue which had to be considered.  In respect of 
contaminated land she advised that some site investigations had been 
undertaken regarding contaminated land and conditions were recommended 
requiring further investigations.  The Committee was advised that a SUDs 
application would have to be made in respect of surface water drainage.   
 
The Principal Planning Officer advised in response to a question about the 
provision of electric charging points that they were not a policy requirement but if 
the Committee was minded to approve the application an informative could be 
added to the approval. 
 
It was moved and duly seconded to approve the application as recommended by 
the officer with the addition of an informative regarding the provision of electric 
charging points. 
 
RESOLVED: Reason for decision: 
that the application be granted 
consent, subject to the 
conditions set out in the report 
which is filed with the signed 
minutes and with the addition of 
an informative regarding the 
provision of electrical charging 

As officer’s recommendation as 
set out in the report which is 
filed with the signed minutes. 

Tudalen 2



2022-04-28 Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee

points. 
 

5.  DECISIONS OF THE HEAD OF PROPERTY, PLANNING AND PUBLIC 
PROTECTION ON DELEGATED APPLICATIONS  

 
The Committee received for information a list of decisions made by the Head of 
Property, Planning and Public Protection during the period between 20 March 
2022 and 14 April 2022. 
 
 
 
As this was the last Committee meeting in the Council term the Chair thanked 
the Committee for their support during his time as Chair and for their 
involvement.  He also thanked the previous Chair, Councillor David Price for his 
advice and support and thanked the current Vice Chair Councillor Gareth Jones 
and previous Vice Chair Councillor E Michael Jones for their support.  He 
thanked all officers for their work with the Committee and thanked the press for 
their interest in the work of the Committee. 

 
 
 

County Councillor K Lewis (Chair)

Tudalen 3



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



2022-06-16 PTLRW Committee

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE PLANNING, TAXI LICENSING & RIGHTS OF 
WAY COMMITTEE HELD AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL ON 

THURSDAY, 16 JUNE 2022 
 

PRESENT 
County Councillor K Lewis (Chair) 
 
County Councillors G D Jones, T Colbert, A Davies, D Edwards, H Hulme, P James, 
A Jones, G E Jones, C Kenyon-Wade, I McIntosh, G Morgan, R G Thomas, 
E Vaughan and D H Williams 
 

1.  APOLOGIES  
 

Apologies for absence were received from County Councillors L George, G Pugh 
and J Wilkinson. 
  

2.  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS  
 

Consideration of the minutes of the meeting held on 28 April 2022 were deferred 
to the next meeting, as there were not enough members present from the 
previous meeting at this current meeting.  The Chair was authorised to sign as a 
correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 30 April, 2022. 
   

Planning 
 

 
 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

(a)       County Councillor G E Jones declared an interest in application 
21/1511/FUL because the applicant had undertaken some work for him in 2021 
and 2022.  
  
(b)       The Committee noted that no Member requested that a record be made 
of their membership of a Community Council where discussion had taken place 
of matters for the consideration of this Committee. 
  
(c)        The Committee noted that no Member (who is a member of the 
Committee) would be acting as ‘local representative’ in respect of any application 
on the agenda. 
  
(d)       The Committee noted that Councillors L Roberts and W Lloyd (who are 
not members of the Committee) would be speaking as the ‘local representative’ 
in respect of applications on the agenda. 
  

 
4.  PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE COMMITTEE  

 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Property, Planning and 
Public Protection (copies filed with the signed minutes). 
  
  

  
Tudalen 5



2022-06-16 PTLRW Committee

4.1 Updates 
 

The Members confirmed that they had received the update circulated the 
previous day and prior to the meeting.  The meeting was adjourned for a short 
period to allow members to read the update. 
    

4.2 21/0186/FUL Unity House, Llandrinio, Llanymynech, Powys, SY22 
6SG 

 
Grid Ref:                               E: 329470 N: 317006 
  
Valid Date:                           22.03.21 
  
Community Council:         Llandrinio and Arddleen Community Council 
  
Applicant:                           Mr Charanjit Singh 
  
Location:                            Unity House, Llandrinio, Llanymynech, Powys, SY22 

6SG 
  
Proposal:                          Change of use and minor extensions to previously 

approved nursing home to form: 15 no 1 bed 
apartments, 2 no 2 bed apartments. 3 no studio 
apartments with associated parking for 27 vehicles 
together with amenity space 

  
Application Type: Full application 
  
The Principal Planning Officer advised that an email had been received that 
morning relating to land ownership and whether appropriate notices had been 
served.  In light of this, the Principal Planning Officer recommended that 
consideration of the application be deferred. 
  
It was moved and duly seconded to defer consideration of the application as 
recommended by the officer. 
  

RESOLVED: Reason for decision: 
That the application be deferred. To allow the applicant to respond 

regarding land ownership and the 
serving of notices. 

  
    

4.3 20/2130/FUL Newbridge Farm, Meifod, Powys, SY22 6HS 
 

Grid Ref:                   E: 312778 N: 310605           
  
Valid Date:               03.02.21          
  
Community Council: Llangyniew Community Council 
  
Applicant:                 J & E Williams 
  
Location:                  Newbridge Farm, Meifod, Powys, SY22 6HS 

Tudalen 6



2022-06-16 PTLRW Committee

  
Proposal:                 Installation of earth banked slurry lagoon and associated 

works         
  
Application Type:  Full application          
  
The Professional Lead Planning advised that people had registered to speak.  
However, the agent was ill and had not been able to arrange a substitute.  As a 
result, to enable the agent to exercise the right of reply on behalf of the applicant, 
it was recommended that consideration of the application be deferred. 
  
It was moved and duly seconded to defer consideration of the application as 
recommended by the officer. 
  

RESOLVED: Reason for decision: 
That the application be deferred.  To enable the agent on behalf of 

the application to exercise their 
right of reply to public speakers. 

  
    

4.4 22/0422/FUL Robert Owen House, Park Lane, Newtown, Powys, 
SY16 1EN 

 
Grid Ref:                   E: 310196 N: 291341           
  
Valid Date:               11.03.22          
  
Community Council:         Newtown and Llanllwchaiarn Town Council 
  
Applicant:                             Carol Gittins 
  
Location:                              Robert Owen House, Park Lane, Newtown, Powys, 

SY16 1EN 
  
Proposal:                              Residential development of 32 units and associated 

works 
  
Application Type: Full application 
  
The Committee noted that this was a brown field site and that there was demand 
for housing in the area.  In response to a question regarding play facilities the 
Senior Planning Officer advised that the equipped play area at Afon House was 
within the 600m accessibility buffer zone identified within the Council’s Open 
Space Assessment (2018) and therefore no further provision was required from 
this application. 
  
It was noted that the application was for 100% affordable housing.  The Senior 
Planning Officer advised, in response to a question, that LDP Policy H5 requires 
that housing development proposals, within the Severn Valley sub-market area, 
are required to make a 20% contribution towards affordable housing.  Therefore, 
the recommended condition only relates to this percentage.  A question was 
asked about the long-term ownership of the homes and the Professional Lead 

Tudalen 7



2022-06-16 PTLRW Committee

Planning advised the long-term plans of the Housing Department were not 
known and were not a planning issue. 
  
It was moved and duly seconded to approve the application as recommended by 
the officer. 
  

RESOLVED: Reason for decision: 
That the application be granted 
consent, subject to the conditions 
set out in the report which is filed 
with the signed minutes. 

As officer’s recommendation as 
set out in the report which is filed 
with the signed minutes. 

  
    

4.5 22/0384/REM Hill View, Fron Grian, Cefn Coch, Welshpool, SY21 
0AG 

 
Grid Ref:                               E: 306269 N: 302477 
  
Valid Date:                           30.03.22 
  
Community Council:         Dwyriw Community Council 
  
Applicant:                             Gabrielle Prince 
  
Location:                              Hill View, Fron Grian, Cefn Coch, Welshpool, SY21 

0AG 
  
Proposal:                           Section 73 application to vary condition no's 4 & 5 

attached to outline planning approval M96539 (to 
allow occupancy restriction rewording) 

  
Application Type: Removal or Variation of Condition 
  
The Committee noted that marketing history of the property was not required to 
remove and vary a condition as applied for.  The Senior Planning Officer advised 
that if the Committee was minded to approve the application and the owner 
wished to remove the rural enterprise dwelling condition, a further application 
would be required.  It would be at this point, that detailed marketing information 
would be required, as the dwelling was in the open countryside. 
  
It was moved and duly seconded to approve the application as recommended by 
the officer. 
  

RESOLVED: Reason for decision: 
That the application be granted 
consent, subject to the conditions 
set out in the report which is filed 
with the signed minutes. 

As officer’s recommendation as 
set out in the report which is filed 
with the signed minutes. 

  
County Councillor G E Jones having declared an interest left the meeting room 
for the next application. 
  
  

Tudalen 8



2022-06-16 PTLRW Committee

 
5.  21/1511/FUL THE OLD ORCHARD, LLANIGON, HEREFORD, POWYS, HR3 

5PN  
 

Grid Ref:                               E: 321636 N: 241383 
  
Valid Date:                           16.08.21 
  
Community Council:         Llanigon Community Council 
  
Applicant:                             Mr & Mrs Metcalfe 
  
Location:                              The Old Orchard, Llanigon, Hereford, Powys, HR3 

5PN 
  
Proposal:                              Erection of a new 4 bedroom dwelling and 

associated work 
  
Application Type: Full application 
  
County Councillor W Lloyd spoke as the local representative. 
Mr O Metcalfe spoke as the applicant. 
  
In response to comments the Principal Planning Officer advised that the 
application was for an open market development in the open countryside, rather 
than a rural enterprise dwelling and as a result the issues for consideration were 
different.  The Professional Lead Planning advised that Technical Advice Note 
[TAN] 6 stated that a development in the open countryside had to be either a 
rural enterprise dwelling or an affordable dwelling.  This application was for 
neither.  In response to questions regarding the agricultural land classification, 
the Principal Planning Officer advised that it was predicted that the land 
classification was grade 2, which is the best agricultural land.  It was noted it was 
for the applicant to test the soil to determine the land classification.   
  
The Committee was reminded that it had to have sound planning reasons to go 
against officer’s recommendation and going against policy.  It was moved and 
duly seconded to refuse the application as recommended by the officer. 
  
It was moved and duly seconded to defer consideration of the application to 
enable the applicant to undertake soil sampling to determine the land 
classification.  This was lost when put to the vote.   
  
It was moved and duly seconded to refuse the application as recommended by 
the officer. 
  

RESOLVED: Reason for decision: 
That the application be refused. 1.The proposed development is 

considered to be unjustified 
development in the open 
countryside contrary to policies 
SP5, SP6, H1 and H6 of the Powys 
Local Development Plan, Planning 
Policy Wales (11th Edition, 2021) 

Tudalen 9



2022-06-16 PTLRW Committee

and Technical Advice Note 6. 
  
2. The proposed development 
would result in the loss of grade 2 
agricultural land (good quality) 
without an overriding need for the 
development and insufficient 
evidence has been provided to 
demonstrate alternative lower 
grade application sites have been 
investigated. The proposed 
development is therefore contrary 
to Planning Policy Wales (11th 
Edition, 2021). 

  
Concerns were raised about the Local Development Plan [LDP] policies which 
were not supporting the retention of young people in the countryside.  The Chair 
agreed to write to the Portfolio Holder regarding these concerns and that the 
review of the LDP should address such issues. 
  
County Councillor G E Jones returned to the meeting room. 
 
  

6.  21/2249/HH HIGH MEADOW, 3 CHURCHILL DRIVE, NEWTOWN, SY16 2LE  
 

Grid Ref:                               E: 311192 N: 292065 
  
Valid Date:                           13.01.21 
  
Community Council:         Newtown and Llanllwchaiarn Town Council 
  
Applicant:                             Mr Karl Chapple-Gill 
  
Location:                              High Meadow, 3 Churchill Drive, Newtown, SY16 

2LE 
  
Proposal:                              Erection of a residential steel frame garage to 

replace an existing garage, creation of new driveway 
and dropped kerb (part retrospective) 

  
Application Type: Householder 
  
Mr M Hughes spoke against the application  
Mrs A Chapple-Gill spoke on behalf of the applicant. 
  
In response to a question the Planning Officer advised that although the garages 
in the area are predominantly brick the proposed material would not significantly 
impact on the character of the area and the garage would also be screened by a 
fence. 
  
It was moved and duly seconded to approve the application as recommended by 
the officer. 
  

Tudalen 10



2022-06-16 PTLRW Committee

RESOLVED: Reason for decision: 
That the application be granted 
consent, subject to the conditions 
set out in the report which is filed 
with the signed minutes. 

As officer’s recommendation as 
set out in the report which is filed 
with the signed minutes. 

  
  

7.  DECISIONS OF THE HEAD OF PROPERTY, PLANNING AND PUBLIC 
PROTECTION ON DELEGATED APPLICATIONS  

 
The Committee received for information a list of decisions made by the Head of 
Property, Planning and Public Protection during the period between 15 April 
2022 and 8 June 2022. 
   

  
Rights of Way 

 
 
 

8.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 

9.  APPOINTMENT OF COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE TO POWYS LOCAL 
ACCESS FORUM  

 
County Councillor G E Jones was duly elected to be the Council’s representative 
on the Powys Local Access Forum [LAC]. 
  
  
  

 
 
 

County Councillor K Lewis (Chair)

Tudalen 11



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of Way Committee 
7th July 2022 

 
For the purpose of the Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the 

background papers relating to each individual planning application constitute all the 
correspondence on the file as numbered in the left hand column. 

 
Applications for consideration by Committee: 

 
Application No:                                     Nature of Development: 
Community:                                          Location of Development: 
O.S. Grid Reference:                            Applicant: 
Date Received:                                     Recommendation of Head of Planning: 
 
 
 
20/2130/FUL 
 
Llangyniew and Meifod Community 
 
 
312778 310605 
 
 
03/02//2021 
 
 

Full: Installation of earth banked slurry 
lagoon and associated works 
 
Newbridge Farm, Meifod, Powys  
SY22 6HS 
 
 J and E Williams 
 
Recommendation: 
Conditional Consent 
 

22/0564/FUL 
 
Llanwrtyd Wells Community 
 
 
287914 246708 
 
 
14/04/2022 

Full: Continuation of siting of a hot 
takeaway food trailer (following conditional 
approval 18/0778/FUL) 
 
Spar Stores, 1 Irfon Terrace,  
Llanwrtyd Wells, Powys LD5 4RB 
 
Mr  Didar Singh 
 
Recommendation: 
Conditional Consent  
 

Tudalen 13

4



22/0510/FUL 
 
Llansilin Community  
 
 
317874 329184 
 
 
21/03/2022 
 
 

Full: Barn Conversion to a residential 
holiday unit and associated works 
 
Nant Hirwaun, Moelfre, Oswestry, Powys 
SY10 7QW 
 
 
Mr B Davies 
 
Recommendation: 
Conditional Consent 
 

Tudalen 14



Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of Way Committee Report 
 

Application 
Number: 

20/2130/FUL Grid Ref: E: 312778 
N: 310605 

Community 
Council: 

 Llangyniew Community Valid Date: 03.02.2021 

 
Applicant: J & E Williams 
 
Location: Newbridge Farm, Meifod, Powys, SY22 6HS  
 
Proposal: Installation of earth banked slurry lagoon and associated works 
 
Application Type: Full Application 
 
 
Reason for Committee determination 
 
The previous Local Member for the Llanfihangel Ward exercised their power of call-in in 
accordance with the constitution. It is noted that the application is now located within the 
Llangyniew and Meifod Ward following the recent ward boundary changes. 
 
Ward councillor’s comments dated 14th March 2021: 
 
Just a quick note to say that I am calling this in front of full planning. There are issues 
with Highways and also the electric company. 
 
Consultee Responses 
 
Consultee Received 

 
PCC-Ecologist 18th Oct 2021 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on planning application 20/2130/FUL which 
concerns an application for Installation of earth banked slurry lagoon and associated works 
at Newbridge Farm, Meifod, Powys, SY22 6HS.  

I have reviewed the proposed plans, aerial images as well as records of protected and 
priority species and designated sites within 500m of the proposed development. 

The data search identified 118 records of protected and priority species within 500m of the 
proposed development. Species recorded within 500m of the proposed development 
include bat species; common pipistrelle, soprano pipistrelle, brown-long-eared bat, and 

Tudalen 15

4.2



brown hare, great crested newt, badger, cuckoo, curlew, spotted flycatcher and swift. 

No statutory and no non-statutory designated sites were identified within 500m of the 
proposed development. One or more Ancient Woodland (AW) sites were identified within 
500m of the proposed development.  

The proposal appears to be located within improved agricultural grassland which is of 
relatively low ecological value. Following submission of revised plans, it was identified that 
118m of roadside hedgerow would need to be removed and replaced with post and wire 
fencing to a accommodate the required visibility splays. PCC Highways have subsequently 
commented that the plans potentially underestimate the extent of the splay, meaning that 
additional hedgerow loss is likely. This represents a significant loss of priority habitat 
(Environment (Wales) Act 2016 and Powys LBAP) and is contrary to Powys LDP policy 
DM2. The agent has identified that compensatory planting could take place at the rear of 
the lagoon and elsewhere on the holding (but outside of the red-line boundary) which may 
be acceptable providing sufficient length is identified. Given the significant length and 
location of habitat corridor that will be impacted, I would, however, why the applicant has 
not considered translocation of the existing hedgerow and/or planting a replacement 
hedgerow inside the new post and wire fencing to maintain the existing habitat connectivity 
and minimise biodiversity impact. Bat species, including lesser horseshoe bat, are present 
in the area and can be significantly adversely affected by removal of essential hedgerow 
flightlines.  

Further information is required to confirm the extent of hedgerow affected and evidence 
that sufficient compensation can be achieved without significant negative impact to 
biodiversity, including European Protected Species.  

It is proposed to plant the lagoon walls with a suitable wildflower seed mix to create 
additional habitat area. This is welcome and, if sufficient hedgerow compensation is 
achieved, will provide a net benefit for biodiversity in accordance with the requirements of 
Part 1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016.  

It is, therefore, recommended that submission of a biodiversity enhancement plan is 
secured through an appropriately worded planning condition. The plan should include 
locations of all seeded areas, details of the suitable species mix used and aftercare 
measures. As further information is required regarding hedgerow compensation, 
submission of further information prior to determination of the application would avoid the 
need for a pre-commencement condition.  

It is noted that the applicant no longer intends to increase the amount of manure/slurry 
relative to the current situation and that there will be no overall increase in the release of 
aerial emissions as a result of the development. Despite this change, it is not clear whether 
the relocation of the slurry store from its present site to this new location poses a risk to the 

Tudalen 16



identified SSSIs because the source of existing emissions has been moved closer to 
designated sites. The proposed site is approximately 510m from Coed Ty Mawr SSSI 
whereas the current muck store at Newbridge Farm is approximately 1.3km away. I note 
that SCAIL modelling results in the required format and completeness do not appear to 
have been submitted yet. I suggest that these are still required and that NRW is consulted 
to confirm that the proposal is acceptable in terms of ammonia emissions to protected sites. 

 

PCC-Ecologist 16th Dec 2021 

I have reviewed the revised details confirming that the majority of the roadside hedgerow 
will be replanted immediately behind the new fencing, which is welcome. The hedgerow 
will require internal fencing to protect it from livestock damage. Sufficient details regarding 
species mix, planting density and aftercare measures will need to be secured. The location 
of wildflower planting is also identified and if implemented and managed in the long-term 
will provide a net benefit for biodiversity. Details of an appropriate seed mix and long-term 
management measures is still required. Livestock access will need to be limited in number 
and to certain times of year or excluded completely. Planting a stock-proof hedgerow along 
the northern perimeter of the site would fulfil this purpose and compensate for the short 
section of hedgerow still to be lost at the entrance.   

Previous comments regarding Coed Ty Mawr SSSI remain valid. 

Therefore, should you be minded to approve the application I recommend inclusion of the 
following conditions: 

Prior to the commencement of development, a Hedgerow Replacement and Aftercare 
Scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
submitted scheme shall include a scaled drawing identifying the location of hedgerow 
replacement planting and a written specification clearly describing species, sizes, densities 
and planting numbers proposed, as well as aftercare measures. The approved scheme 
shall be implemented in full and maintained thereafter. 

Reason: To comply with Powys County Council's LDP Policies DM2 in relation to The 
Natural Environment and DM4 in relation to Landscape, and to meet the requirements of 
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, February 2021), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and 
Planning and Part1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

Prior to the commencement of development, a Wildflower Area Creation and Management 
Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
submitted scheme shall include a scaled drawing identifying the wildflower area and a 
written specification clearly describing species-mix, time of sowing, and long-term 

Tudalen 17



management specification. The approved scheme shall be implemented in full and 
maintained thereafter. 

Reason: To comply with Powys County Council's LDP Policies DM2 in relation to The 
Natural Environment, and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, 
February 2021), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part1 Section 6 of the 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

In addition, I consider it would be appropriate to include the following informatives: 

Protected Species 

Work should halt immediately and Natural Resources Wales (NRW) contacted for advice 
in the event that protected species are discovered during the course of the development. 
To proceed without seeking the advice of NRW may result in an offence under the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 and/or the Wildlife & Countryside 
Act 1981 (as amended) being committed. NRW can be contacted by phone at 0300 065 
3000. 

Birds - Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) 

All nesting birds, their nests, eggs, and young are protected by law and it is an offence to: 

o intentionally kill, injure or take any wild bird 

o intentionally take, damage or destroy the next of any wild bird whilst it is in use or 
being built  

o intentionally take or destroy the egg of any wild bird 

o intentionally (or recklessly in England and Wales) disturb any wild bird listed on 
Schedule 1 while it is nest building, or at a nest containing eggs or young, or disturb the 
dependent young on such a bird. 

The maximum penalty that can be imposed - in respect of a single bird, nest or egg - is a 
fine of up to 5,000 pounds, six months imprisonment or both. 

The applicant is therefore reminded that it is an offence under the Wildlife and Countryside 
Act 1981 (as amended) to remove or work on any hedge, tree or building where that work 
involves the taking, damaging or destruction of any nest of any wild bird while the nest is in 
use or being built (usually between late February and late August or late September in the 
case of swifts, swallows or house martins). If a nest is discovered while work is being 
undertaken, all work must stop, and advice sought from Natural Resources Wales and the 
Council's Ecologist. 

Tudalen 18



 

PCC-Ecologist 27th Apr 2022 

NRW have confirmed that the proposed development is not considered to present a risk to 
protected sites, which is welcome, so I have no additional comments to provide. 

 

Environmental Protection 1st Mar 2021 

The following information has been submitted in support of planning application 
20/2130/FUL: 

o CGW Owen 'Access Statement: An Application for the Installation of A Slurry Lagoon 
and Silage Effluent Tank at Newbridge Farm, Meifod' 18th January 2021. 

o Mr Gary Owen email: 'Re: 20/2130/FUL' 24 February 2021. 

o Mr Gary Owen email: 'Re: Planning Application 20/2130/FUL - Newbridge Farm, 
Meifod' 24 February 2021. 

o Mr Gary Owen email: 'Re: Planning Application 20/2130/FUL - Newbridge Farm, 
Meifod' 23 February 2021. 

Based on the information submitted, in the above referenced sources, Environmental 
Protection would have no requirements in respect of planning application 20/2130/FUL - 
subject to the lagoon construction and slurry storage complying with the requirements of 
Natural Resources Wales and current legislation and regulation e.g. The Water Resources 
(Control of Agricultural Pollution) (Wales) Regulations. 

 

Environmental Protection 

21st Sep 2021 

Concerning the additional information notification for planning application 20/2130/FUL, the 
advice provided from Environmental Protection previously, by email dated 1 March 2021 
(copy attached), would remain the same. 

 

PCC-(N) Highways 2nd Mar 2021 

The Highway Authority are unable to support the above-named application for the following 
reasons; 

Tudalen 19



An application such as this should include full access details, such as the full visibility splays 
including forward visibility, access width, radii, gradient, surfacing detail setback position of 
the gate. However little detail has been submitted for consideration and we note Section 6 
of the application form states that no alterations to the access are proposed. 

Perceived speeds in the area of the access are 60mph in a northeasterly direction and 
50mph in a southwesterly direction, therefore visibility splays of 215m and 160m 
respectively are required. The proposed splays give an indicative road speed of 30 - 40mph 
(Design Manual for Roads and Bridges/Manual for Streets 2, respectively); therefore, the 
proposed splays are considerably less than required. We note Section 1.4 of the Design & 
Access Statement refers to an average speed of 40mph, we further note that no ATC data 
has been submitted to evidence the quoted speeds. 

The visibility splays shown on the "access to field" drawing, are drawn incorrectly and the 
drawing suggests that the highway verge in the area of the access is 2.5m wide, which is 
considerably greater to that observed on the ground. 

Insufficient forward visibility to the southwest is afforded to vehicles travelling in a north-
easterly direction.  

We note that the location plan does not show a blueline line, therefore the applicant controls 
insufficient frontage in order to construct the requisite forward visibility and visibility splays, 
nor sufficiently set the gate back. 

As drawn, the access drawing shows a length of 9m from the edge of carriageway to the 
rear of the concrete pad, with the dimensions of the pad as being 20.5 x 5.5m. The average 
length of a modern tractor is 6.5m and slurry tankers very in length between 5 - 6.6m, 
therefore giving a maximum combination length of 11.5 - 13.1m. No evidence has been 
submitted that the proposed pad is of sufficient size to allow vehicles to enter and exit in a 
forward gear. Furthermore, given the likely vehicle lengths that would service the site, the 
access gates would need to be setback a minimum of 15m.  

No detail of the proposed construction and loading of the proposed concrete pad have been 
submitted for consideration. 

No detail of the proposed vehicle movements across all vehicle sizes, to include the start 
of each journey has been submitted for consultation. 

As submitted, the application does not comply with LDP Policies DM13 (10) & T1, Manual 
for Streets 1 & 2, TAN18, the Design Manual for Roads and Bridges, and Welsh 
Government Circular 016/2014. 

Policy T1 - Travel, Traffic and Transport Infrastructure  

Tudalen 20



Transport infrastructure, traffic management improvements and development proposals 
should incorporate the following principal requirements:   

1. Safe and efficient flow of traffic for all transport users, including more vulnerable 
users, and especially those making 'Active Travel' journeys by walking or cycling; 

2. Manage any impacts to the network and the local environment to acceptable levels 
and mitigate any adverse impacts; and,   

3. Minimise demand for travel by private transport and encourage, promote and 
improve sustainable forms of travel including Active Travel opportunities in all areas.   

Policy DM13 - Design and Resources   

Development proposals must be able to demonstrate a good quality design and shall have 
regard to the qualities and amenity of the surrounding area, local infrastructure and 
resources.  

Proposals will only be permitted where all of the following criteria, where relevant, are 
satisfied: 

10. The development has been designed and located to minimise the impacts on the 
transport network - journey times, resilience and efficient operation - whilst ensuring that 
highway safety for all transport users is not detrimentally impacted upon.  

Development proposals should meet all highway access requirements, (for all transport 
users), vehicular parking standards and demonstrate that the strategic and local highway 
network can absorb the traffic impacts of the development without adversely affecting the 
safe and efficient flow of traffic on the network or that traffic impacts can be managed to 
acceptable levels to reduce and mitigate any adverse impacts from the development. 

 

PCC-(N) Highways 14th Jul 2021 

The Highway Authority has been in discussion with the LPA and the applicant's appointed 
agent, and we currently await the submission of revised drawings. 

 

 

PCC Highways                                                                                            1st Oct 2021 

The County Council as Highway Authority for the County Class II Highway, B4389 

Tudalen 21



Wish the following recommendations/Observations be applied 

Recommendations/Observations 

The Highway Authority has reviewed the revised drawings/detail submitted in support of 
the application and wish to make the following comments. 

The applicant has undertaken a speed survey to the southwest of the proposed access, 
and we note that the revised access drawings have not been adjusted in line with the 85th 
percentile speed reported. The visibility drawings have been drawn incorrectly and do not 
show the full extent of the visibility splays. Furthermore, the drawings do not show the 
carriageway, verge and hedge on the opposite side of the B4389. The drawings therefore 
do not show the extent of hedgerow that needs to either be removed or relocated. 

The 85th percentile speed to the southwest (those travelling northeast) of the access is 
47.65mph, in accordance with CD109 the Stopping Sight Distance (SSD) is 137m an 
adjustment is made for the 1:21 negative gradient of the B4389 which calculates the 
visibility splay in this direction as 158m.   

We note the submitted drawings do not include a full blueline plan, therefore, there is no 
certainty that applicant controls all the land required to construct the access visibility splays. 

The HA recommends the applicant submit a full blueline plan, and a revised access drawing 
based on the topographical survey, showing how the visibility splays are to be achieved. 
The access visibility splays should be drawn in accordance with Figure 7.18[a] Manual for 
Streets as shown on Page 93. Should the applicant not control sufficient land to implement 
the visibility splays, Notice should be served on the relevant landowner in accordance with 
WGC016/2014. 

We note that the applicant intends to surface the access with concrete rather than bitumen 
tarmacadam. We advise that concrete is a non-standard material and therefore the 
applicant has to submit the specification which they intend to use and the proposed method 
of reinforcement. We further advise that a negative condition could be attached to any 
consent given, or the applicant could submit the detail at this stage. 

 

PCC-(N) Highways 12th Jan 2022 

The Highway Authority (HA) has reviewed the revised drawings/detail submitted in support 
of the application and wish to make the following comments. 

We understand that the applicant proposes to construct the access using bituminous 
tarmacadam rather the previously specified concrete. On that basis, the applicant is not 

Tudalen 22



required to submit a specification as tarmacadam is a standard material. 

The HA recommend that the following conditions be attached to any consent given. 

1. Notwithstanding the submitted details on access drawings "Splay Looking East" & 
"Splay to West" the Highway Authority wish the following conditions to be applied to any 
consent given. 

2. No development shall commence until provision is made within the curtilage of the 
site for the parking of all construction vehicles together with a vehicle turning area. The 
parking and turning area shall be constructed to a depth of 0.4 metres in crusher run or 
sub-base and maintained free from obstruction at all times such that all vehicles serving 
the site shall park within the site and both enter and leave the site in a forward gear for the 
duration of the construction of the development. 

3. No other development shall commence until the access has been constructed so 
that there is clear visibility from a point 1.05 metres above ground level at the centre of the 
access and 2.4 metres distant from the edge of the adjoining carriageway, to points 0.6 
metres above ground level at the edge of the adjoining carriageway and 160 metres distant 
in a westerly direction and 130m in a easterly direction measured from the centre of the 
access along the edge of the adjoining carriageway.  Nothing shall be planted, erected or 
allowed to grow on the area(s) of land so formed that would obstruct the visibility and the 
visibility shall be maintained free from obstruction for as long as the development hereby 
permitted remains in existence. 

4. Upon formation of the visibility splays as detailed above the centreline of any new 
or relocated hedge should be positioned not less than 1.0 metre to the rear of the visibility 
splay and retained in this position as long as the development remains in existence. 

5. Before any other development is commenced the area of the access to be used by 
vehicles is to be constructed to a minimum of 410mm depth, comprising a minimum of 
250mm of sub-base material, 100mm of bituminous macadam base course material and 
60mm of bituminous macadam binder course material for a distance of 15 metres from the 
edge of the adjoining carriageway.  Any use of alternative materials is to be agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the access being constructed. 

6. Prior to the first operational use of the development, provision shall be made within 
the curtilage of the site for the parking of not less than two tractor & trailer's together with a 
turning space such that all vehicles serving the site my both enter and leave the site in a 
forward gear. The parking and turning areas shall be retained for their designated use for 
as long as the development hereby permitted remains in existence.  

7. Prior to the first beneficial use of the development the area of the access to be used 

Tudalen 23



by vehicles is to be finished in a 40mm bituminous surface course material for a distance 
of 15 metres from the edge of the adjoining carriageway. This area will be maintained to 
this standard for as long as the development remains in existence. 

8. The gradient of the access shall be constructed so as not to exceed 1 in 20 for the 
first 15 metres measured from edge of the adjoining carriageway along the centre line of 
the access and shall be retained at this gradient for as long as the development remains in 
existence. 

9. The width of the access carriageway, constructed as Condition 3 above, shall be not 
less than 5.5 metres for a minimum distance of 15 metres along the access measured from 
the adjoining edge of carriageway of the county highway and shall be maintained at this 
width for as long as the development remains in existence. 

10. Any vehicular entrance gates installed within the application site shall be set back at 
least 15 metres distant from the edge of the adjoining carriageway and shall be constructed 
so as to be incapable of opening towards the highway and shall be retained in this position 
and form of construction for as long as the dwelling/development hereby permitted remains 
in existence. 

11. No surface water drainage from the site shall be allowed to discharge onto the 
county highway. 

Advisory Notes 

NOTE: THE ATTENTION OF THE APPLICANT MUST BE DRAWN TO RELATED 
HIGHWAYS LEGISLATION WHICH MAKES PROVISION FOR THE FOLLOWING; 

1. Under Section 184 of the Highways Act 1980, it is a requirement that a licence is 
obtained from the Highway Authority, in addition to Planning Permission, for vehicular 
access works.   

a. The need to avoid interference with and to make provision for the carrying of existing 
highway drainage under the access to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority. 

b. The requirement of the Highway Authority for the Developer to ensure that no 
surface water is discharged onto the County Highway or, without prior approval, into the 
highway drainage system. 

2. Under Section 50 of the New Roads & Street Works Act 1991 it is a requirement that 
a Streetworks licence is obtained from the Highway Authority to place, or to retain, 
apparatus in the highway and thereafter to inspect, maintain, adjust, repair, alter or renew 
the apparatus, change its position or remove it.   

Tudalen 24



3. The need to inform and obtain the consent of Statuary Undertakers (Electricity, 
Water, Gas, BT), Land Drainage Authority, etc. to the works. 

4. The New Roads & Street Works Act 1991 requires that all works, be properly notified 
and approved prior to commencement.   

 

Cadw - SAM 24th Feb 2021 

Thank you for your letter of 9 February 2021 inviting our comments on the information 
submitted for the above planning application.   

Advice 

Having carefully considered the information provided, we have no objection to the proposed 
development in regards to the scheduled monuments listed in our assessment of the 
application below. 

The national policy and Cadw's role in planning are set out an Annex A. 

Assessment  

MG044 Mathrafal Castle 

MG231 Bryn Y Saethau Hillfort 

MG232 Ffridd Mathrafal Hillfort 

MG124 Pentre Camp 

The above scheduled monuments are located inside 2km of the proposed development, but 
apart from MG231, intervening topography and vegetation block all views between them, 
consequently the proposed development will have no impact on the settings of these 
scheduled monuments. 

Scheduled monument MG231 Bryn y Saethau Hillfort is located some 500m to the northwest 
of the proposed development. It comprises the remains of an Iron Age hillfort, located in a 
cleared area within conifer forest. 

The monument is one of three, possibly contemporary hillforts overlooking the confluence of 
the Afon Banwy with the Afon Vyrnwy and controlling access along the river valleys (the 
others being scheduled monument MG232 Ffridd Mathrafal Hillfort to the northwest and 
scheduled monument MG124 Pentre Camp to the southwest). The significant views from the 
scheduled monument are therefore towards the east in an arc from north to south with specific 

Tudalen 25



views to Ffridd Mathrafal to the northwest and Pentre Camp to the southwest. 

The proposed development will see a slurry lagoon 45m x 25m constructed. It will be partly 
excavated into the ground, but will require concrete walls above ground and these will be 
concealed by surrounding grassed mounds. It will be visible in part of the identified significant 
view from Bryn y Saethau Hillfort but not in one of the specific views. In the significant view it 
will be partly screened by existing vegetation and whilst it will be obvious during the 
construction phase, once the grass has grown on the mounds surrounding the lagoon it will 
be much less conspicuous. As such whilst there may be a very slight visual change in the 
view from the monument this will not have any effect on the way that it is experienced, 
understood and appreciated. Consequently the proposed development will have no impact 
on the setting of scheduled monument MG231. 

 

Cadw - SAM 15th Mar 2021 

A new location plan showing that the applicant owns land adjacent to the proposed 
development has been submitted. This new information does not alter our advice given on 
24 February 2021. 

 

Cadw                                                                                                            27th Sep 2021 

Amended plans for this the proposed development has been submitted. This new information 
does not alter our advice given previously. 

 

Community Council 18th Feb 2021 

The council is extremely sympathetic toward the farmers application and understands why 
he would require a new slurry lagoon; however the council cannot support this application for 
the lagoon to be sited at the site proposed by the applicant. The council's reasons for 
objecting to the location are those expressed in the letters by the residents, in particular, the 
visual impact, access, mains water and electricity running through the field. 

 

Community Council 

 

26th Jun 2021 

Thank you for the additional information concerning the slurry lagoon at Newbridge farm, the 
Community Council discussed this at length at its meeting of 15 June 2021 and made the 

Tudalen 26



following comments:  

The Council wishes to emphasise that it has every sympathy with the applicant and wishes 
to support farming and businesses; but even after reviewing the additional information the 
Council cannot support this application for the lagoon to be sited at this very prominent 
positioned site proposed by the applicant. The Council supports neighbours who have raised 
concerns and objections particularly the concerns they raise about flies and odour particularly 
when emptying the lagoon.   

The Council also noted that it was claimed in the letter from the applicant's agent that the 
same amount of road journeys is being taken to spread slurry on the fields as there will be to 
transport slurry to the lagoon. The Council does not question this, but one has to remember 
that the weather conditions have to be suitable to spread directly on the fields, if you are 
taking it to the slurry lagoon, it could be a very wet and dark day with poor visibility, and in 
the information provided by the applicant's agent that the applicant has a tanker capable of 
carrying some 13 cubic metres of waste this is obviously very heavy  and going up the bank 
to the proposed site possibly will not be travelling fast and with poor visibility this could be 
very dangerous for people trying to overtake.  

The Council also note that the applicant will remove a considerable amount of hedge and this 
will make the site open for people to see as passing in this tourist area. It is very difficult to 
keep a site clean and tidy when it is working and busy.  

The Community Council suggests that the applicant would look for an alternative site. 

The Community Council respectfully asks that this application is dealt with by the planning 
committee where the applicant and objectors can put their case and the committee will have 
all the facts before them and they can judge the application on Planning and Environmental 
policies. 

 

Community Council 4th Oct 2021 

Firstly, can my council make it clear that it has every sympathy with the applicant as stated 
previously and still does have, but it is extremely disappointed that the applicant has not 
moved the site. 

In the submission by the applicant's agent as far as highways safety goes, it completely 
misses the point.  The journeys taking place now to spread the manure on the ground, the 
weather conditions have to be good, but the proposal as stated before, the weather can be 
poor and poor visibility. Accidents have happened on this road and one must bear in mind 
the applicants tractor will be travelling up the hill, heavily loaded and slow, if he has to stop 
for oncoming traffic which is travelling downhill (possibly at speed) this could be extremely 

Tudalen 27



dangerous (an accident waiting to happen). 

Members of my council have also noticed an increase in traffic using the road, particularly 
since the pandemic as we are having more holiday traffic which supports the local 
economy. 

The applicant, my council respectfully suggests is admitting that this application has a 
detrimental effect on the area by now reducing the size of the lagoon. 

The Unitary Authority has a duty of care to the residents of the area, particularly the concern 
of odour, increase of flies (due to the odour) and of slurry possibly being disposed on the 
highway.  We would urge the Unitary Authority to work with the applicant to find a much 
more suitable site away from the public eye to satisfy the local need and tourism which this 
area depends on as the applicant himself would be aware of having his own tourist 
business. 

 

Hafren Dyfrdwy                                                                                              4th March 2021  

As the proposal has minimal impact on the public sewerage system I can advise we have no 
objections to the proposals and do not require a drainage condition to be applied. 

 

Hafren Dyfrdwy 28th Sep 2021 

As the proposal has minimal impact on the public sewerage system I can advise we have 
no objections to the proposals and do not require a drainage condition to be applied 

 

 

 

PCC-Rights of Way Senior Manager                                                           19th Feb 2021  

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this planning application. 

The proposed development will directly affect footpath 232/20(A)/1, and if built as per the 
plans will involve having to divert the legal route of the path to the other side of the hedge 
line.  Countryside Services therefore wishes to submit a holding objection and advises the 
applicant seeks advice and apply for a legal diversion from the Council. No development 
can take place on a public right of way until a legal order is confirmed and the process may 
take at least 6 months.  For more information, please discuss with Countryside Services at 
the earliest available opportunity. 

Tudalen 28



 

PCC Rights of Way Senior Manager                                                           11th May 2022 

That all sounds good to me – I’m not too concerned about fence spec as long as it isn’t 
electrified or is made from barbed wire or similar. I would imagine that it should be some 
form of chain link fencing about 3m/10 feet in height given what it is protecting. 

 

CPAT 15th Feb 2021 

Thank you for consulting us on the above application at Newbridge Farm, Meifod to install 
an earth banked slurry lagoon and associated works.  

I can confirm there are no archaeological impacts as a result of this proposal, however as 
the site lies between two Scheduled Ancient Monuments it would be worth consulting with 
Cadw via Neil Maylan cadwplanning@gov.wales just in case they have any setting issues 
in relation to the Scheduled Mathrafal Castle which is located 180m to the north-east and 
Bryn y Saethau Hillfort, 500m to the north-west.  

 

 

Natural Resources Wales (Mid Wales) 
DPAS 

25th Feb 2021 

Thank you for consulting Natural Resources Wales (NRW) about the above, which was 
received on 09/02/2021. 

We have significant concerns with the proposed development as submitted. We 
recommend you should only grant planning permission if the following requirement is met. 
Otherwise, we would object to this planning application. 

Requirement 1: Submission of an atmospheric ammonia impact assessment 

Protected Sites and Aerial Emissions 

Agricultural units have the potential to impact protected sites through aerial emissions 
(ammonia and nitrogen deposition). NRW assesses the air quality impact a unit may have 
on European protected sites and Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) within a 
screening distance of 5km of the unit. 

Requirement 1: Submission of an atmospheric ammonia impact assessment 

Tudalen 29



The application will need to show the risk of atmospheric ammonia concentrations and 
nitrogen deposition on nearby sites. This can be done using the free online tool - SCAIL 
(Simple Calculation of Ammonia Impact Limits) available at http://www.scail.ceh.ac.uk/ 

Therefore, we require the submission of a report from SCAIL or other air quality modelling 
package that includes: 

 the input data 

 background levels 

 process contributions (PC) 

the predicted new environmental concentrations (PEC) of ammonia and nitrogen 

For further advice on livestock units can be found in NRW's guidance documents: Guidance 
Note 21: Poultry Units: planning permission and environmental assessment and Guidance 
Note 20: Assessing the impact of ammonia and nitrogen on designated sites from new and 
expanding intensive livestock units 

Other Matters 

Our comments above only relate specifically to matters included on our checklist, 
Development Planning Advisory Service: Consultation Topics (September 2018), which is 
published on our website. We have not considered potential effects on other matters and 
do not rule out the potential for the proposed development to affect other interests. 

We advise the applicant that, in addition to planning permission, it is their responsibility to 
ensure they secure all other permits/consents/licences relevant to their development. 
Please refer to our website for further details. 

Advice to Developer 

Agriculture 

Please note we will require sample results from trial pits dug to determine suitability for the 
earth bank lagoon - permeability cannot exceed 10.9m/s, typically a clay content of 20% to 
30% with sufficient material available to ensure an impermeable layer at least 1m thick or 
detail regarding a liner to be used. We have received calculations for the sizing of the 
lagoon and they are considered acceptable. 

Facilities where slurry is generated must comply with the Water Resources (Control of 
Pollution) (Silage, Slurry and Agricultural Fuel Oil) Regulations 2010. Site operators should 
ensure that there is no possibility of contaminated water entering and polluting surface or 
groundwater. 14 days' notice must be given to NRW before construction begins on a new 

Tudalen 30



or improved slurry or silage store (this change applies from 28th April) 

Please refer to the link below for further information: 

http://naturalresources.wales/guidance-and-advice/business-sectors/farming/good-
farming-practice/?lang=en 

 

Natural Resources Wales (Mid Wales) 
DPAS 

9th Apr 2021 

Thank you for consulting Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru / Natural Resources Wales about the 
above, which we received on 26/02/2021. 

We have significant concerns with the proposed development as submitted. We 
recommend you should only grant planning permission if the following requirements are 
met. Otherwise, we would object to this planning application. 

Requirement 1 - Additional information to be included on the proposed plans, in order to 
assess the risk of pollution from the proposed development 

Requirement 2 - Submission of screenshot version of the SCAIL report results 

Requirement 3- Submission of a Pollution Prevention Plan 

Environmental Management 

Further information is required regarding the proposed earth banked slurry lagoon. It is 
unclear if the proposal will result in pollution to surface or groundwaters, because it is 
unclear from the submitted plans and documents if the design is compliant with the Water 
Resources (Control of Agricultural Pollution) (Wales) Regulations 2021. 

Requirement 1 - Additional information to be included on the proposed plans, in order to 
assess the risk of pollution from the proposed development 

The following information is required for us to provide advice on the proposal: 

1. Full calculations of the likely quantities of slurry which will be produced, so to assess the 
proposed of the lagoon (slurry and rainfall), so to confirm the compliance with the 
regulations above. 

2. Confirmation of the depth of the lagoon. The plan (titled 'Layout Plan', drawn by Gary 
Owen dated January 2021, labelled 'Amended Plan' on your Authority's website, uploaded 
on 15 Mar 2021) includes a figure of 7.5 mtrs, but it is unclear whether this refers to the 

Tudalen 31



depth of the proposed lagoon. 

3. We will require the results of soil sampling assessments from trial pits, to determine the 
suitability of an earth bank lagoon at this location. 

Protected Sites and Aerial Emissions 

Agricultural developments have the potential to impact protected sites through aerial 
emissions (ammonia and nitrogen deposition). We assess the air quality impact a proposal 
may have on European protected sites and Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) and 
European sites within a screening distance of determined by the size of the slurry lagoon. 

Requirement 2 - Submission of screenshot version of the SCAIL report results 

Your Authority's website includes a spreadsheet document (uploaded on 15 Mar 2021 titled 
'SCAIL MODELLING' which includes figures from a SCAIL report. 

To review a SCAIL report we require the submission of screenshots of the input data and 
results pages of the SCAIL system to be provided in PDF format. We will provide further 
comments when this information is received. 

Pollution Prevention Plan - Construction and Management 

We advise a pollution prevention plan must be submitted with the planning application to 
detail the pollution prevention measures which will be taken during the construction and 
operational phases of the proposal. 

Requirement 3 - Submission of a Pollution Prevention Plan 

Appropriate pollution prevention measures must be in place, to ensure that the water 
environment (both surface and groundwater) are not polluted during excavation, 
construction and landscaping. When working near watercourses, work must be carried out 
in a manner so as not to cause pollution to controlled waters. 

Oils and chemicals should be stored in bunded areas and spill kits should be readily 
available in case of accidental spillages. 

For further guidance please refer to the guidance provided by the following link: 
http://www.netregs.org.uk/environmental-topics/pollution-prevention-guidelines-ppgs-and-
replacement-series/guidance-for-pollution-prevention-gpps-full-list 

The Pollution Prevention Plan should include NRW's incident response telephone number. 
Should any contaminated water or materials enter or pollute the watercourse or 
groundwater, Natural Resources Wales must be notified on 03000 65 3000. 

Tudalen 32



Manure Management 

If the proposal is to accommodate an increase in stock numbers at the farm, the Applicants 
must submit a Manure Management Plan with their application. The plan must include the 
information outlined below: 

All manures and wash water must be collected and stored in accordance with The Water 
Resources (Control of Pollution) (Control of Agricultural Pollution) (Wales) Regulations 
2021 and should spread according to the Welsh Government's Code of Good Agricultural 
Practice (CoGAP). 

Manure spreading can be a major contributor of excess nutrients to land and water where 
it is not appropriately applied. CoGAP recommends organic manure applications should be 
driven by crop requirement, with the limiting element being phosphate and not nitrogen. 
Therefore, we seek to advise that a Nutrient Management Plan would be useful to the 
Applicant in preventing pollution to watercourses from nutrient enrichment. 

Routine soil sampling that includes the need for pH, nitrogen, phosphate, potassium as well 
other nutrients such as magnesium should be sought. The outcomes of the soil sampling 
and regular monitoring should be used to inform how manure and fertiliser application rates 
should be adjusted as required to meet the requirement of the crop. 

NRW provide standing guidance which includes Guidance Note GN021 Poultry Units: 
planning permission and environmental assessment. This guidance, although initially for 
poultry, provides advice on preparing Manure Management Plans MMP and Nutrient 
Management Plans NMP, as well as providing further links to guidance. This includes 
making use of the Fertiliser Manual (RB209) and the Tried & Tested Nutrient Management 
Plan - Created by the industry for the industry documents. Using the approaches set out in 
these documents is likely to lead to the application of organic manures and any fertilisers 
being balanced against the existing nutrient availability and will be done for agricultural 
benefit. 

Protected Species 

No protected species survey has been provided to NRW with the consultation. We therefore 
assume your Authority has screened the application and concluded that there is not a 
reasonable likelihood of protected species being present. Should an ecological report be 
available which shows evidence of protected species using the proposal location, we would 
wish to be re-consulted. 

Other Matters 

Our comments above only relate specifically to matters included on our checklist, 
Development Planning Advisory Service: Consultation Topics (September 2018), which is 

Tudalen 33



published on our website. We have not considered potential effects on other matters and 
do not rule out the potential for the proposed development to affect other interests. 

We advise the applicant that, in addition to planning permission, it is their responsibility to 
ensure they secure all other permits/consents/licences relevant to their development. 
Please refer to our website for further details. Advice to the Developer 

NRW must be informed 14 days before construction begins on a new or improved slurry or 
silage store. This change applies from 28th April 2021. 

 

Natural Resources Wales (Mid Wales) DPAS 30th Jun 2021 

Thank you for consulting Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru / Natural Resources Wales about the above, 
which we received on 10/06/2021. 

Further to our previous letter referenced CAS-139346-J1G1 dated 09/04/2021, we have the 
following advice to provide. 

We have concerns with the application as submitted because inadequate information has 
been provided in support of the proposal. To overcome these concerns, you should seek 
further information from the applicant regarding aerial emissions. If this information is not 
provided, we would object to this planning application. Further details are provided below. 

Requirement 1 - Further information is submitted to demonstrate that the likely impact of the 
development on the SSSI can be managed by the implementation of appropriate 
mitigation/compensation. 

Protected Sites and Aerial Emissions 

We have significant concerns that insufficient information has been submitted to demonstrate 
how likely damage to the eight protected sites within 5km will be avoided. 

o Coed Ty Mawr SSSI 

o Cors Cefn Llwyd SSSI 

o Ffridd Mathrafal Track Section SSSI 

o Gweunydd Ceunant SSSI 

o Cors Ty Gwyn SSSI 

o Gwaun Efail Wig SSSI 

Tudalen 34



o Gweunydd Ger Fronhaul SSSI 

o Pen-Dugwm Woods SSSI  

Planning permission should only be granted if information is provided which demonstrates 
that the proposed development will not unacceptably damage the features by reason of which 
the SSSI is of special interest. 

Paragraph 6.4.14 of Planning Policy Wales states that proposals must be carefully assessed 
to ensure that effects on those nature conservation interests which the designation is 
intended to protect are clearly understood; development should be refused where there are 
adverse impacts on the features for which a site has been designated. 

A SCAIL assessment has been provided on your Authority's website, uploaded on 11 June 
2021. The screenshots are incomplete, as details are missing from the input page. The results 
pages for the protected sites have not been presented. 

The first paragraph of the last page of the letter by CGW Owen dated 4th June 2021 to your 
Authority confirms the ambition to increase stock numbers at the farm from 200 to 250 cows. 

We advise the SCAIL report must consider the existing and proposed scenarios (i.e. by 
setting a baseline of 200 cows and then the future emissions from 250 cows) for comparison, 
and screenshots of the input data and results pages being made available. 

Should the output demonstrate that any of the SSSIs have the potential to be affected by the 
development (i.e. the process contribution is equal to or greater than 1% of the Critical Level 
when combined to the background emission level) then we would advise further details to 
reduce emission are likely to be required. Either mitigation measures need to be considered 
and appropriately selected to reduce ammonia emission affecting the SSSI(s); and/or, 
detailed modelling will need to be completed to define the process contribution to a finer scale 
(to demonstrate no significant impact) or determine the appropriate mitigation measures to 
be implemented to make the development acceptable. Further information can be found via 
our website - Natural Resources Wales / Ammonia assessments for developments that 
require a permit or planning permission 

In the absence of this information, we cannot rule out adverse impacts on the special interest 
features of the SSSI from the scheme. 

We therefore recommend that planning permission should only be granted if information is 
provided which demonstrates that the proposed development will not damage features for 
which the SSSI is of special interest. 

Should you be minded to grant permission for the above planning application in the absence 
of this information, we ask that you notify us under the provisions contained in Section 28I of 

Tudalen 35



the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). 

Environment Management 

We have reviewed the additional information provided in the letter referenced above and the 
soil sampling test by Celtest, test report ref. TR 784980 dated 10 March 2021. The information 
provided above confirms the soil to be suitable for an earth banked slurry lagoon at this 
location, and that it will be built to comply with the requirements of The Water Resources 
(Control of Agricultural Pollution) (Wales) Regulations 2021. 

The letter referenced above refers to pollution prevention measures. These must be adhered 
to during the construction works. 

We would advise the plans referenced above must be implemented by means of a condition 
on any consent granted. 

Other Matters 

Our comments above only relate specifically to matters included on our checklist, 
Development Planning Advisory Service: Consultation Topics (September 2018), which is 
published on our website. We have not considered potential effects on other matters and do 
not rule out the potential for the proposed development to affect other interests. 

We advise the applicant that, in addition to planning permission, it is their responsibility to 
ensure they secure all other permits/consents/licences relevant to their development. Please 
refer to our website for further details. 

Advice for the Developer 

Notifying Natural Resources Wales 

A minimum of 14 days' notice must be given to Natural Resources Wales in writing before 
construction of a new, substantially enlarged or reconstructed store containing slurry or silage 
begins. 

 

Natural Resources Wales (Mid Wales) 
DPAS 

18th Jan 2022 

We have considered the query from the Agent, asking if we would insist on a complete 
SCAIL assessment if the cattle numbers on the farm remain as existing. Currently, we 
understand this proposal to be to accommodate an increase in stock from 200 to 250.  

Before being able to advise definitively, we need to understand whether there is currently 

Tudalen 36



a slurry lagoon on site. From the submitted plans, the proposed location of the slurry lagoon 
is at a distance from the main farm complex. As such, we are likely to insist on the 
submission of the full SCAIL report.  

Our previous letter requested a complete SCAIL report. This is a relatively undemanding 
request, considering it appears the SCAIL assessment has already been run once to 
provide the section of the assessment which has already been provided. 

We would also like to know, is this proposal solely for an earth banked slurry lagoon, as 
suggested by the application title? The submitted plans also show a silage clamp. We 
would be grateful for clarification on whether we are to consider both the slurry lagoon and 
the silage clamp.  

The proposed location for the slurry lagoon appears to be at a distance from Newbridge 
Farm. Detail needs to be included on how it is proposed to transport slurry to this lagoon.  

The plan titled 'Proposed Slurry Lagoon' dated August 2021, uploaded to your Authority's 
website on 17/09/2021 states the lagoon is for 180 cows. We understand the proposal is 
either for 200 or 250 cattle.  

We'd be grateful for clarification on these points above. Please re-consult with NRW when 
this information has been provided.  

 

 

Natural Resources Wales (Mid Wales) DPAS 21st Feb 2022 

We continue to have significant concerns that insufficient information has been submitted to 
demonstrate how likely damage to the multiple Sites of Scientific Interest (SSSI) will be 
avoided. Planning permission should only be granted if information is provided which 
demonstrates that the proposed development will not unacceptably damage the features by 
reason of which the SSSI is of special interest. 

Paragraph 6.4.14 of Planning Policy Wales states that proposals must be carefully assessed 
to ensure that effects on those nature conservation interests which the designation is 
intended to protect are clearly understood; development should be refused where there are 
adverse impacts on the features for which a site has been designated. 

We consider that the proposed development is likely to damage the features by reason of 
which the SSSIs identified submitted SCAIL report are of special interest. Note that the SCAIL 
screenshots identify eight SSSIs within 5km of the development but only one, the Coed Ty-
Mawr SSSI, has had a full SCAIL assessment completed. 

Tudalen 37



Therefore, the applicant has not provided sufficient information to demonstrate how the 
proposed development will avoid damaging the special interest features of the SSSIs. 

Slurry lagoons have the potential to impact protected sites through aerial emissions. 
Ammonia deposition at the SSSIs identified in the SCAIL screenshots can be significantly 
affected by inappropriate development by increasing the nutrient levels beyond which the 
sensitive species can withstand and thereby degrading the SSSI features. 

We acknowledge that the predicted process contribution to the Coed Ty-Mawr SSSI is less 
than 1% of the Critical Level and the background levels are also below the Critical Level. 
Based on the information submitted we have no further concerns regarding the Coed Ty-
Mawr SSSI. However, there is no assessment of the other seven SSSIs identified in the 
SCAIL screenshots. 

Therefore, we advise your Authority to seek a full and complete assessment is completed for 
all SSSIs within 5km of the development. Individual screenshots of each SSSI from SCAIL is 
likely to be acceptable. The Applicant should be reminded that they need to confirm the 
appropriate Critical Level for each site. This can be done by following our standing advice - 
Natural Resources Wales / Ammonia assessments: initial screening and evidence gathering 
(GN 020). Interpretation of the SCAIL results should follow our standing advice - Natural 
Resources Wales / How to interpret the results from your screening or modelling exercise for 
Ammonia Emissions (GN 020) - and the appropriate next step taken, whether it be finalising 
the assessment or undertaking more detailed assessment to inform necessary mitigation 
measures. Note that it may be necessary to engage a suitably qualified and experienced 
ecologist and/or air quality consultant to support the development proposal. 

In the absence of this information, we cannot rule out adverse impacts on the special interest 
features of the SSSI from the scheme. 

We therefore recommend that planning permission should only be granted if information is 
provided which demonstrates that the proposed development will not damage features for 
which the SSSI is of special interest. 

Should you be minded to grant permission for the above planning application in the absence 
of this information, we ask that you notify us under the provisions contained in Section 28I of 
the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). 

 

  

 

Tudalen 38



Natural Resources Wales (Mid Wales) 
DPAS 

10th Mar 2022 

Thank you for re-consulting NRW. There does not seem to be any further information 
available on your Authority's website further from our previous correspondence. As such, 
we advise our advice email dated 21/02/2022 remains valid. Please re-consult NRW when 
the requested information has been submitted.  

 

Natural Resources Wales (Mid Wales) 
DPAS 

31st Mar 2022 

Further to our previous letter referenced CAS-139346-J1G1 dated 30/06/2021, we have 
the following advice to provide.  

We have concerns with the application as submitted because inadequate information has 
been provided in support of the proposal. To overcome these concerns, you should seek 
further information from the applicant regarding aerial emissions. If this information is not 
provided, we would object to this planning application. Further details are provided below. 

Protected Sites and Aerial Emissions 

We have concerns that insufficient information has been submitted to demonstrate how 
likely damage to the Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) listed below, will be avoided.  

Planning permission should only be granted if information is provided which demonstrates 
that the proposed development would not unacceptably damage the features by reason of 
which the SSSI is of special interest.  

Paragraph 6.4.14 of Planning Policy Wales states that proposals must be carefully 
assessed to ensure that effects on those nature conservation interests which the 
designation is intended to protect are clearly understood; development should be refused 
where there are adverse impacts on the features for which a site has been designated.  

Currently, we advise insufficient information has been provided to demonstrate how the 
proposed development will avoid damaging the special interest features of the SSSI. We 
have reviewed the SCAIL screenshots which have been presented on your Authority's 
website, uploaded on 14/03/2022, regarding this proposal. The SCAIL report has 
considered the air quality impact the proposal would have on European protected sites and 
Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) within a screening distance of 5km of the 
proposal.  

The first paragraph of the last page of the letter by CGW Owen dated 4th June 2021 to 

Tudalen 39



your Authority confirms the ambition to increase stock numbers at the farm from 200 to 250 
cows.  

As such, a SCAIL assessment has been provided, and the results are summarised below.  

Cors Cefn Llwyd SSSI (1.3km) 

The background ammonia level is 2.02µg/m3. The ammonia critical level is 3µg/m3. The 
ammonia process contribution from the development to the SSSI is 0.13µg/m3, which is 
4% of the critical level.  

Gweunydd Ceunant SSSI (1.8km) 

The background ammonia level is 2.32µg/m3. The ammonia critical level is 3µg/m3. The 
ammonia process contribution from the development to the SSSI is 0.07µg/m3, which is 
2% of the critical level. 

Cors Ty Gwyn SSSI (2.3km) 

The background ammonia level is 2.32µg/m3. The ammonia critical level is 1µg/m3. The 
ammonia process contribution from the development to the SSSI is 0.04µg/m3, which is 
5% of the critical level.  

Gwaun Efail Wig SSSI (3.2km) 

The background ammonia level is 1.5µg/m3. The ammonia critical level is 3µg/m3. The 
ammonia process contribution from the development to the SSSI is 0.03µg/m3, which is 
1% of the critical level.  

Gweunydd Ger Fronhaul SSSI (3.5km) 

The background ammonia level is 1.6µg/m3. The ammonia critical level is 3µg/m3. The 
ammonia process contribution from the development to the SSSI is 0.02µg/m3 which is 1% 
of the critical level.  

Pendugwm Woods SSSI (3.6km) 

The background ammonia level is 2.32µg/m3. The ammonia critical level is 1µg/m3. The 
ammonia process contribution from the development to the SSSI is 0.02µg/m3 which is 2% 
of the critical level.  

The predicted process contribution for the above SSSIs exceed the threshold for which we 
consider a significant effect to the SSSI could occur. No assessment of the effects on the 
SSSIs has been submitted or has been made available to us to advise whether the 
additional ammonia being deposited will be significant or not. 

Tudalen 40



Planning Policy Wales provides multiple references to considering polluting development 
and we would advise your Authority of its contents, particularly Section 5.6.9, 6.4.17 and 
6.7.16, which confirm in relation to livestock units' cumulative impacts resulting from similar 
developments in the same area should be considered and there is a presumption against 
development where a polluting development is likely to harm the feature(s) of a SSSI.  

Therefore, we advise a detailed modelling assessment and ecological impact assessment 
focussing on the significance of aerial emissions effects is completed which considers the 
cumulative effects to the SSSIs to inform your Authority's decision making process. 

Other Matters 

Our comments above only relate specifically to matters included on our checklist, 
Development Planning Advisory Service: Consultation Topics (September 2018), which is 
published on our website. We have not considered potential effects on other matters and 
do not rule out the potential for the proposed development to affect other interests. 

We advise the applicant that, in addition to planning permission, it is their responsibility to 
ensure they secure all other permits/consents/licences relevant to their development. 
Please refer to our website for further details. 

 

Natural Resources Wales (Mid Wales) 
DPAS 

22nd Apr 2022 

Further to our previous letter referenced CAS-184789-M0N6 dated 31/03/2022, we have 
the following advice to provide.  

We have concerns with the application as submitted. However, we are satisfied that these 
concerns can be overcome if the documents identified below are included in the approved 
plans and documents condition on the decision notice:  

o Plan titled 'Layout Plan' by Gary Owen dated August 2021  

o Plan titled 'Proposed Lagoon' by Gary Owen dated August 2021 

Please note, without the inclusion of these documents we would object to this planning 
application. Further details are provided below. 

Pollution Prevention - Slurry storage  

We have reviewed the following plans:  

o Plan titled 'Layout Plan' by Gary Owen dated August 2021  

Tudalen 41



o Plan titled 'Proposed Lagoon' by Gary Owen dated August 2021 

o Letter titled "Planning Application re Installation of earth banked slurry lagoon and 
associated works. Your Ref 20/2130/FUL" dated 25th August 2021 by CGW Owen to your 
Authority  

The letter includes calculations of the capacity of the proposed lagoon, based on 180 cows.  

The letter confirms the size of the lagoon is to accommodate the need of the existing herd 
size. The lagoon is designed to accommodate 5 months slurry and calculations supplied 
appear to be correct. The design of the proposed lagoon is the same as originally intended, 
but now the size has been reduced to accommodate the existing stock numbers.  

The proposed lagoon must meet the requirements for slurry storage within The Water 
Resources (Control of Agricultural Pollution) (Wales) Regulations 2021 which come into 
force on the 1 August 2024. Further guidance is available in The Water Resources (Control 
of Agricultural Pollution) (Wales) Regulations 2021 Guidance for Farmers and Land 
Managers (gov.wales). In reviewing the submitted plans, it appears compliance with these 
regulations can be achieved.  

Notifying Natural Resources Wales  

A minimum of 14 days' notice must be given to Natural Resources Wales in writing before 
construction of a new, substantially enlarged or reconstructed store containing slurry or 
silage begins. 

Aerial Emissions and Protected Sites  

The letter referenced above from the Agent states:  

"To this effect we intend to reduce the size of the lagoon (so it meets current herd needs 
number alone)." The Agent confirmed that the proposed lagoon plans have been reduced 
from the original submissions, to account only for the current stock numbers at the farm.  

Based on the understanding that there will not be an increase in stock numbers at this farm 
as a result of this proposal, we would not require an assessment of ammonia emissions 
from the development. As such, we would not have concerns for this proposal and potential 
impacts on protected sites.  

Other Matters 

Our comments above only relate specifically to matters included on our checklist, 
Development Planning Advisory Service: Consultation Topics (September 2018), which is 
published on our website. We have not considered potential effects on other matters and 

Tudalen 42



do not rule out the potential for the proposed development to affect other interests. 

We advise the applicant that, in addition to planning permission, it is their responsibility to 
ensure they secure all other permits/consents/licences relevant to their development. 
Please refer to our website for further details. 

 

PCC Contaminated Land Officer                                       18th May 2022 

There are no recorded contamination issues associated with the subject site. 

 

Representations 
 
Following display of a site notice on 18th February 2021, thirteen public representations 
have been received in objection and are summarised as follows: 
 

  Close to adjoining properties  
  Increase of pollution  
  Health and safety implications including release of harmful gases to health of 

humans and animals, unsupervised site and vehicles crashing off road into the 
development 

  Affect local ecology e.g. impact on watercourses from gases, Great Crested Newts 
and water voles in local watercourses 

  General dislike of proposal  
  Out of keeping with character of area  
  Potentially contaminated land 
  Queries location of proposed development detached from the farmyard and 

whether there are other locations that would be more suitable elsewhere on the 
farm 

  Concerns over amenity; in particular noise, odour and flies and rodents 
  Visual impact 
  Highway safety concerns over mud on road, in particular in winter when it will 

freeze 
  Depreciation in value of neighbouring properties 
  Safety – people and wildlife may fall in and drown 
  Is there a contingency for overflow should flooding occur due to heavy rainfall? 
  Proximity to a public right of way 
  Who will monitor the good management of the lagoon? 
  There should be further public consultation before any decision is made 
  The existing access is unsuitable for the proposed development 
  There are mains water and electricity supplies running through/over the land 
  Proposed hedgerow would take years to establish and provide biodiversity benefits 
  Proposed wildflower planting is likely to be unsuccessfully implemented and 

Tudalen 43



managed long term 
  Greenfield site 
  Affect local ecology 
  Overbearing impact upon view from property 
  Outlook from property will be compromised 
  Impact upon Powys tourism e.g. visible to users of public highway and visitors to 

Mathrafal woods from the footpath and vantage spot and the development might 
adversely affect the suitability of nearby fields for hosting the National Eisteddfod 
which proved very successful for the area in 2003 and 2015  

  Precedent of allowing other development detached from farmyard. 
  Conflict with local plan  
  Not enough info given on application  
  Close to areas of archaeological interest 
  The transport of material to the site will reduce the amenity of public highways to 

others with highway outside main farmyard being covered in mud 
  Increased traffic using access and along highway 
  Highway has been subject to accidents 
  Traffic Speed Survey results undertaken on behalf of applicant may be incorrect 

as believed to be undertaken whilst speed restrictions were in place due to 
roadworks being carried out 

  Hedgerow has been ‘netted’ 
 
 
In addition, CPRW Montgomeryshire have commented as summarised below: 
 

  Raise awareness of proximity of public right of way 
  Concerns regarding the distance from the farm. The development is in open 

countryside several kms from the farm and in a prominent position in an unspoilt 
landscape. As it is not clustered with other farm buildings it will appear an 
anachronistic intrusion (at odds with the Powys Landscape SPG). The distance is 
also likely to increase the road miles travelled carrying slurry. 

  Concerned at the significant removal of hedgerows and possible deleterious 
impacts on biodiversity, particularly should there be a leakage into ground water / 
aquifers. This is contrary to the emerging Powys NRAP (Nature Recovery Action 
Plan). In particular we note the proximity to a number of SSSIs and the damage 
that may be caused to such sites by long term water pollution. There would need 
to be close monitoring of the site to ensure that it was operated in compliance with 
CoGAP. 

  CPRW Montgomeryshire is supportive of the farming community but also aware 
that Wales has been declared a Nitrogen Vulnerable Zone (NVZ) and also that 
there is both a biodiversity crisis and an increasing loss of our precious 
landscapes. A slurry lagoon requires very careful management and monitoring for 
which it should be near to the farm complex. Where lagoons are well managed 
they can operate in trouble free manner but this proposal is not in the right place. 

 

Tudalen 44



In addition, Powys Ramblers have commented as summarised below: 
 

  We wish to strongly support the comments and holding objection made by 
Countryside Services. The proposals as planned will have an adverse impact on 
the right of way at the site. 

 
Planning History 
 
 

App Ref Description Decision Date 
 
At application 
site: 
 
8123 
 
At 
main farmstead: 
 
 
20/1422/FUL 

 
 
 
Water pipe 
 
 
 
 
 
Erection of a general purpose 
agricultural building 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approve 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
12th Nov 2020 

 
21/0143/FUL Installation of a silage effluent 

tank 
Approve 19th Aug 2021 

 
MAGR/2003/0091 Erection of an agricultural 

livestock building 
 22nd Sep 2003 

 
P/2011/1325 Erection of a two storey 

extension, erection of a sun room 
and alterations 

Consent 16th Jan 2012 

 
 
Principal Planning Constraints 
 

  
  
 
 

Principal Planning Policies 
 
Policy Policy Description Year Local Plan 

 
NATPLA Future Wales - The 

National Plan 2040 
 National Policy 

 

Right of Way 232/20(A)/1 
Within a distance of 1km Bryn y Saethau Hillfort 
Within a distance of 1km Mathrafal Castle 

Tudalen 45



PPW Planning Policy Wales 
(Edition 11, February 2021) 

 National Policy 

 
TAN5 Nature Conservation and 

Planning 
 National Policy 

 
TAN6 Planning for Sustainable 

Rural Community 
 National Policy 

 
TAN12 Design  National Policy 

 
TAN18 Transport  National Policy 

 
TAN11 Noise  National Policy 

 
TAN23 Economic Development  National Policy 

 
TAN24 
 
SP6 

The Historic Environment 
 
Distribution of Growth 

 National Policy 
 
Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
SP7 Safeguarding of Strategic 

Resources and Assets 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM2 The Natural Environment  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM4 
 
 
DM10 

Landscape 
 
 
Contaminated and 
Unstable Land 

 Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 
 
Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
DM13 Design and Resources  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM12 
 
 
DM14 

Development in Welsh 
Speaking Strongholds 
 
Air Quality Management 

 Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 
 
Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
DM15 
 
 

Waste Within 
Developments 
 

 Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 
 

Tudalen 46



T1 Travel, Traffic and 
Transport Infrastructure  

Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

SPGARC Archaeology SPG (2021)  Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
SPGHE Historic Environment SPG 

(2021) 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGLAN Landscape SPG  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGBIO Biodiversity and 

Geodiversity SPG (2018) 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
 
Other Legislative Considerations 
 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998  
 
Equality Act 2010  
 
Planning (Wales) Act 2015 (Welsh language)  
 
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
 
Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009 
 
 
Officer Appraisal 
 
 
Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 
 
This application has been considered in accordance with Section 38 (6) of the Planning  
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, which requires that, if regard is to be had to the  
development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made under the Planning  
Acts, the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material  
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Public representations have raised concern over the effect of the development upon 
property values. Paragraph 9.4.2 of Welsh Government’s Development Management 
Manual (Revision 2 – May 2017) states that factors to be taken into account in making 
planning decisions (material considerations) must be planning matters; that is, they must 
be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in the public interest, 
towards the goal of sustainability. 
 
Paragraph 9.4.3 further states that material considerations must also be fairly and 

Tudalen 47



reasonably related to the development concerned. The Courts are the final arbiters of 
what may be regarded as material considerations in relation to any particular application, 
but they include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means 
of access, landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on 
the environment. The effects of a development on, for example, health, public safety and 
crime can also be material considerations, as, in principle, can public concerns in relation 
to such effects. 
 
Given that the value of property is not relevant to the regulation of the development and 
use of land in the public interest, the issue is not considered to be a material planning 
consideration and will not be considered further. 
 
Public representations have referred to the development setting a precedent for other 
development to follow. Each application for planning permission is required to determined 
on its own merits and as such if future development were proposed at or near the site, 
the development would be considered in accordance with the relevant local and national 
planning policy and other material planning considerations. 
 
Public consultation 
 
Public representations raise concerns over insufficient public consultation being carried 
out. A site notice was displayed at the access to the site and in addition, members of the 
public who submitted comments have been provided with the opportunity to submit further 
comments following the receipt of additional and/or revised information. This publication 
accords with the requirements of The Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (Wales) (Amendment) Order 2016. 
 
Site location and description 
 
The application site is located on the north-western side of the B4389 highway, 
approximately 3.5km south-west of Meifod. The site forms part of a larger improved 
grassland field and is bound on the south-eastern, north-eastern and south-western sides 
by hedgerows. The land descends from the B4389 highway to the north-west. 
 
The application seeks consent for the installation of an earth banked slurry lagoon and 
associated works, including alterations to the existing means of vehicular access off the 
B4389 highway. During the processing of the application, revised plans and information 
has been received in relation to reducing the size of the lagoon and amendment to 
orientation. The revised lagoon measures approximately 27m by 23m and 4.6m deep. 
The lagoon will be partly excavated into the ground, but will require concrete walls above 
ground and these will be concealed by grassed mounds. Due to the sloping nature of the 
site, the grassed mounds will vary in height above the current land levels with the highest 
mound measuring at approximately 6m. 
 
Principle of development 
 

Tudalen 48



Planning Policy Wales as well as Technical Advice Notes 6 and 23 accept the principle 
of appropriate agricultural development within the open countryside. Local Development 
Plan (LDP) Policy SP6 regarding the distribution of growth recognises that agricultural 
development will occur in the open countryside and details that such proposals will be 
assessed against national policy and all other relevant polices of the plan. Therefore, 
subject to all other material planning matters being acceptable, the principle of the 
development is considered to be acceptable in accordance with the planning policy 
framework referred to above. 
 
Need 
 
The submission indicates that Natural Resources Wales (NRW) have visited the farm and 
prepared a report in which the need for additional slurry storage was highlighted. The 
submission indicates that, currently, slurry storage capacity, constructed pre-1991, is 
insufficient for existing slurry volumes generated at the unit to cover the winter housing 
period. There is sufficient land available to fully utilise the nutrients available from the 
slurry and so providing additional storage means that the nutrients can be utilised at the 
optimum time meaning the enterprise is more resilient to fertiliser price changes. 
 
The present system of management will continue; slurries, “dirty” yard water and 
dairy/parlour washings will be collected in existing facilities at the main farmstead, 
Newbridge Farm. These will then be transferred to the proposed lagoon via tanker using 
the highway network. According to the submission, the required capacity of the lagoon 
has been calculated to be sufficient to contain 5 months slurry production as required by 
Welsh Government for new stores in areas designated Nitrate Vulnerable Zone.  
 
It is understood that The Water Resources (Control of Agricultural Pollution) (Wales) 
Regulations 2021 require all slurry stores to comply with the relevant requirements by the 
1 August 2024 and as such the need behind the development is compliance with 
Regulatory standards. The submission explains that there are also other benefits to 
having additional storage including greater flexibility to the business in timing of 
operations, reducing risk to the water environment and a greater use of nutrients 
generated on farm reducing the need to import artificial nutrients.  
 
Paragraph 5.6.8 of Planning Policy Wales suggests that planning authorities should adopt 
a constructive approach towards agricultural development proposals, especially those 
which are designed to meet the needs of changing farming practices or are necessary to 
achieve compliance with new environmental, hygiene or welfare legislation. Paragraph 
6.6.4 of TAN6 further states that regulations set minimum standards for new, substantially 
reconstructed or enlarged silage, slurry or fuel oil facilities. The Environment Agency 
(responsibilities now lie with Natural Resources Wales) is empowered to serve notice 
requiring action to improve existing installations when it considers that there is a 
significant risk of pollution. These Regulations form an important part of the Welsh 
Government’s commitment to reduce agricultural pollution of rivers. Planning authorities 
are therefore encouraged to consider sympathetically development proposals aimed at 
meeting the requirements of these Regulations. 

Tudalen 49



 
Justification for location 
 
Public representations have queried why the development is proposed in a location 
detached from the farmyard and other buildings or on other land which forms part of the 
farm holding. The submission states that the Vyrnwy valley is subject to flooding and the 
lagoon must be positioned on land outside of the valley floor; outside of the flood zone 
where the land is more likely to be frequently waterlogged. In addition, the submission 
describes other constraints to siting the development at other locations including proximity 
to residential properties, topography, trees, access, proximity to watercourses and public 
rights of way. The development is proposed on a block of land where it is stated that 
regular applications of slurry take place through the year currently.  
 
Landscape and visual impact 
 
Public representations and the Community Council have raised concern over the impact 
of the development upon the unspoilt Powys landscape and it being in a prominent, 
detached location from the main farmstead and its associated buildings etc.  
 
Criterion 1 of LDP Policy DM13 requires that all developments are designed to 
complement and/or enhance the character of the surrounding area in terms of siting, 
appearance, integration, scale, height, massing, and design detailing. LDP Policy SP7 
states that to safeguard strategic resources and assets in the County, development 
proposals must not have an unacceptable adverse impact on the resource or asset and 
its operation.  LDP Policy DM4 requires that development outside the Towns, Large 
Villages, Small Villages and Rural Settlements defined in the Settlement Hierarchy must 
not, individually or cumulatively, have an unacceptable adverse effect, on the valued 
characteristics and qualities of the Powys landscape. Further guidance on landscape 
impact is provided by the Landscape SPG. 
 
LANDMAP has evaluated the landscape as follows: 
 
Visual and Sensory - moderate 
Geological Landscape – moderate 
Landscape Habitats – high 
Historic Landscape – high 
 
The Visual and Sensory Aspect Area (MNTGMVS714 Vyrnwy Rolling Lowlands) is 
summarised as follows: 
 
‘Rolling lower transitional side slopes of the broad River Vyrnwy valley bottom. 
Predominantly arable and dairy farming with a regular medium sized field pattern. 
Managed hedgerow and fencelines predominate with wide open views over the valley 
floor and relatively open skies dominant. Settled and domestic in character with sporadic 
clustered developments’ 
 

Tudalen 50



Within the justification of the Visual and Sensory evaluation, it is stated that the aspect 
area is rolling lowland farmland with a distinct landscape character that would benefit from 
further enhancement and strengthening from supplementary tree and hedgerow planting.  
 
The application site and immediate surroundings are characteristic of the description of 
the aspect area with the site located on a hillside overlooking the Vyrnwy Valley. The 
application site is visible in close proximity from the B4389 highway which travels 
immediately to the south-east of the application site and public right of way 232/20(A)/1 
which travels along the south-western boundary. In addition, it is possible that the site is 
visible from the A495 highway which travels along the valley floor to the north-east, north 
and north-west of the application site with the closest point of the highway being 
approximately 230m. In addition, there are residential properties in the locality, the closest 
being approximately 230m distant, a number of other public rights of way, the closest 
being approximately 100m distant and other vantage points including Mathrafal Woods 
and Bryn y Saethau Hillfort which are located over 450m. 
 
The site is considered to be located in a relatively tranquil landscape, located on the 
hillside of a river valley, however as noted within the summary of the Visual and Sensory 
Aspect Area of LANDMAP, agriculture is evident in the area. As such the development is 
not considered to be out of character in that respect. The development would be an 
isolated form of development, being detached from the main farmstead and not grouped 
with any other agricultural or other development. In addition, the development would be 
sited on land which descends from the south-east to the north-west and as such the north-
western earth mound will be required to be higher. However, the development would not 
be located on the skyline with the land further rising to the south-east beyond the site and 
highway. It would be low profile and the concrete walls would be obscured by the earth 
embankments. Therefore, from public vantage points, grassed mounds with a fence 
around the perimeter would be seen and whilst the site would be visible from the valley 
floor to the north-west, as aforementioned, it would not be on the skyline and it is not 
considered that it would interrupt open views of the valley floor or open skies.  
 
In order to achieve the access improvements, it will be necessary to remove 
approximately 150 metres of roadside hedgerow. It is proposed to replant the hedgerow 
behind the visibility splays and to ensure that such planting occurs, it is recommended 
that a condition is attached to any consent granted to require the submission, approval 
and implementation of a Hedgerow Replacement and Aftercare Scheme. It is also 
considered that the site would benefit from additional hedgerow planting along the north-
western boundary which would assist in mitigating the impact and it is recommended that 
a condition to require additional hedgerow planting should be attached to any consent 
granted.  
 
It is also proposed to fence off the adjacent public right of way which requires the erection 
of new fencing and it is recommended that a condition is attached to secure details of the 
proposed fencing to ensure its design and height are appropriate to the location. In 
consideration of the development, it is not considered that the siting, scale and design will 
significantly detract from the characteristics and qualities of the landscape identified by 

Tudalen 51



the LANDMAP system and additional planting would also assist in mitigating any impact. 
 
Users of the public right of way and other recreational assets in the locality will be able to 
see the development, however in terms of the right of way immediately adjacent to the 
site, this would be for an approximate distance of 50 metres when users would be walking 
alongside the development. Otherwise the other identified recreational assets are located 
at greater distances where the landscape and visual impact is reduced.  
 
It is noted that the Historic Landscape layer has an overall ‘high’ value and the justification 
for this is due to the aspect area being an extensive area of irregular fields and some 
sinuous woodland occupying archetypal rolling Montgomeryshire hill land. Dominated by 
medieval and later agriculture with numerous farms and houses, a number of medieval 
(or possibly earlier) settlements with churches, but also a number of Bronze Age barrows 
and standing stones and Iron Age hillforts and enclosures.  Further consideration will be 
given to the impact of the development on Scheduled Ancient Monuments and their 
settings later in the report, however, it is not considered that the development would 
unacceptably affect the noted qualities that give the aspect area its overall evaluation. 
 
It is also noted that the Landscape Habitats layer has an overall ‘high’ value and the 
justification for this is due to the small fields of permanent pasture some of which contain 
wetter areas with more native grass species have species rich hedges. Small blocks of 
woodland and mature trees are scattered throughout the area as well as some larger 
woodland blocks. A number of small streams run through the area which supports a 
number of small but significant Sites of Special Scientific Interest and roadside nature 
reserves which carry a very diverse range of grassland species. The biodiversity is greatly 
enhanced by this range of unimproved grasslands, Carr woodlands and valley mires. 
These habitats support a significant range of species and all together this area has a 
National importance and therefore a High value. The ecological and biodiversity impact 
of the development will be discussed later in the report, however given that the site is 
located on land which is improved grassland and the scale of the development, it is not 
considered that the development would unacceptably affect the landscape habitat 
qualities noted by LANDMAP. 
 
Overall, whilst the contents of the public representations are noted and the proposal 
would be a new, isolated agricultural development, given the siting, scale and design of 
the development as well as the distances to public vantage points and recreational assets 
and in consideration of the LANDMAP information, subject to the use of the 
recommended conditions, the landscape and visual impact is considered acceptable. It 
is therefore, concluded that the proposal would not have an unacceptable adverse impact 
upon the valued characteristics and qualities of the landscape or the public rights of way 
or other public vantage points as recreational assets in accordance with LDP Policies 
SP7, DM13 and DM4. 
 
Amenity 
 
Public representations and the Community Council have raised concerns over the impact 

Tudalen 52



of the development on the amenities enjoyed by the occupants of neighbouring 
properties, particularly in respect of odour, noise, flies, pests and harmful gases being 
released. The application site is located within 250 metres of a number of residential 
dwellings. 
 
TAN 6 states that when considering applications for livestock and slurry units, Local 
Planning Authorities should exercise particular care to avoid potential future conflict 
between neighbouring land uses and it is important also for planning authorities to keep 
incompatible development away from other polluting or potentially polluting uses. 
Criterion 11 of LDP Policy DM13 requires that the amenities enjoyed by the occupants or 
users of nearby or proposed properties shall not be unacceptably affected by levels of 
noise, dust, air pollution, litter, odour, hours of operation, overlooking or any other 
planning matter. Criterion 1 of LDP Policy DM14 states that Development proposals will 
only be permitted where any resultant air pollution does not cause or lead to an 
unacceptable risk of harm to human health. Proposals will need to demonstrate that 
measures can be taken to overcome any significant adverse risk, with particular attention 
being paid to the National Air Quality Strategy objectives and any Air Quality Management 
Areas. 
 
Given the distance to neighbouring residential properties and nature of the development, 
there are no concerns regarding overlooking or overshadowing, however consideration 
of the impact of the development on matters such as noise, odour, air quality and pests 
is required. 
 
The Council’s Environmental Protection department have advised that based on the 
information submitted in respect of use and management of the development, which is 
summarised below, there are no requirements subject to the lagoon construction and 
slurry storage complying with the requirements of Natural Resources Wales and current 
legislation and regulation e.g. The Water Resources (Control of Agricultural Pollution) 
(Wales) Regulations. 
 
Information referred to in Environmental Protection response: 
 
‘Slurry generated when the cows are housed (mid to late October through to April) will be 
collected in existing facilities and brought by tanker to the proposed lagoon.  It will be 
stored in the lagoon until it can be used optimally for crop needs – when the nutrients will 
be best taken by the growing crop.  It will not be agitated during storage.  
 
The lagoon is designed to meet standards with the involvement of NRW and Welsh 
Government. Newbridge is a dairy farm (no poultry muck or pig slurry is proposed for 
storage). The site chosen is on a block of grass conservation ground (all improved) where 
slurry is routinely applied’.   
 
In terms of noise, it is accepted that there would be noise associated with transporting 
slurry to the site and depositing slurry in the lagoon as well as during the construction 
phase. Given existing usage of the public highway, the amount of traffic generated and 

Tudalen 53



the distance from the closest receptors, it is not considered likely that there would be any 
significant additional noise from traffic relating to the development. It is accepted that the 
depositing of slurry into the lagoon may cause additional noise as well as the construction 
of the development, however such noise is likely to be over a short time period and it is 
also acknowledged that agricultural operations such as slurry application can legitimately 
take place on the land currently which have the ability to generate noise. It is not 
considered that the proposed development would generate unacceptable additional 
levels of noise to that that can currently take place on site. 
 
In terms of odour, Environmental Protection have not requested any additional 
information such as an odour assessment. The submission indicates that the slurry would 
not be agitated during storage which is considered to assist in mitigating any odour 
impacts.  
 
In terms of flies and pests, Environmental Protection have not requested any additional 
information.  
 
In terms of air quality, LDP Policy DM14 is intended to ensure that proposed 
developments will not intensify existing problems, cause new problems or result in people 
being exposed to unacceptable levels of air pollution. The UK Air Quality Strategy (2007) 
sets out the standards (concentrations of pollutants in the atmosphere which can broadly 
be taken to achieve a certain level of environmental quality) and objectives (policy targets 
not to be exceeded). It is noted that emissions from agricultural units can result in local 
hotspots of high ammonia concentrations and nitrogen deposition around installations 
which is occurring against a background of high nitrogen deposition across Powys, 
however this matter will be assessed in the report below in respect of the impact upon the 
environment, in particular protected sites.  
 
The site is not located within an Air Quality Management Area and Environmental 
Protection have not raised any concerns in respect of the development leading to 
unacceptable levels of air pollution or exceeding the standards set out within the UK Air 
Quality Strategy and as such it is concluded that the development would lead to an 
unacceptable risk of harm to human health in terms of air pollution. 
 
Whilst the contents of the public representations are appreciated, on the basis of 
Environmental Protection’s advice, it is concluded that the development would not 
unacceptably affect the amenities enjoyed by the occupants or users of nearby or 
proposed properties in accordance with Criterion 11 of LDP Policy DM13 and any 
resultant air pollution would not cause or lead to an unacceptable risk of harm to human 
health in accordance with LDP Policy DM14. 
 
Biodiversity, ecology and the environment 
 
Public representations have raised concerns over ecological impacts of the development 
including concerns over gases causing pollution problems to nearby watercourses, 
ground water pollution, the likely success of proposed hedgerow and wildflower planting, 

Tudalen 54



that there are great crested newts and water voles in the locality and that the roadside 
hedgerow has been netted to prevent birds from nesting. 
 
Policy DM2 of the Powys Local Development Plan seeks to maintain biodiversity and 
safeguard protected important sites. Policy DM2 states that proposed development 
should not unacceptably adversely affect any designated site, habitat of species including 
locally important site designations. The Council’s SPG on biodiversity provides guidance 
on assessing the impact of development on designated sites or protected species. In 
respect of air quality, Criterion 2 of LDP Policy DM14 requires that development proposals 
will need to demonstrate that measures can be taken to overcome any significant adverse 
risk, with particular attention being paid to the critical levels for the protection of habitats 
and species within a European site or Site of Special Scientific Interest in accordance 
with Policy DM2. 
 
The development would be located on improved agricultural grassland which is of 
relatively low ecological value. 
 
Protected sites 
 
Slurry lagoons have the potential to impact protected sites through aerial emissions. NRW 
assesses the air quality impact a unit may have on European protected sites and Sites of 
Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) within a screening distance of 5km of the unit. The 
following sites are within 5km of the proposed development: 
 
• Coed Ty Mawr SSSI 
• Cors Cefn Llwyd SSSI  
• Ffridd Mathrafal Track Section SSSI 
• Gweunydd Ceunant SSSI 
• Cors Ty Gwyn SSSI  
• Gwaun Efail Wig SSSI  
• Gweunydd Ger Fronhaul SSSI  
• Pen-Dugwm Woods SSSI 
 
Initially NRW requested an assessment of ammonia emissions from the development to 
enable the impact of the development upon the identified SSSIs to be considered. During 
the processing of the application it has been clarified that the applicant no longer intends 
to increase the amount of manure/slurry relative to the current situation and the lagoon is 
to accommodate the need of the existing herd size of 180 cows. There will be no overall 
increase in the release of aerial emissions as a result of the development.  
 
The lagoon is designed to accommodate 5 months slurry and calculations have been 
supplied. NRW have advised that compliance with the requirements for slurry storage 
within The Water Resources (Control of Agricultural Pollution) (Wales) Regulations 2021 
which come into force on the 1 August 2024 can be achieved. NRW have confirmed that 
based on the understanding that there will not be an increase in stock numbers at this 
farm as a result of this proposal, they do not require an assessment of ammonia 

Tudalen 55



emissions from the development. As such, NRW does not have concerns for this proposal 
and potential impacts on protected sites. 
 
The Planning Authority is not aware of significant ecological issues relating to lagoon 
gases on adjacent habitats including watercourses. The Health and Safety Executive 
guidance refers to the risk to humans and animals occupying an enclosed space in the 
immediate vicinity of a lagoon, particularly when slurry is stirred or disturbed. 
 
On the basis of the advice received from NRW and the Council’s Ecologist, it is 
considered that the development would not unacceptably adversely affect protected sites 
in accordance with LDP Policies DM2 and DM14. 
 
Protected species 
 
The Council’s Ecologist has advised that the data search identified 118 records of 
protected and priority species within 500m of the proposed development. Species 
recorded within 500m of the proposed development include bat species; common 
pipistrelle, soprano pipistrelle, brown-long-eared bat, and brown hare, great crested newt, 
badger, cuckoo, curlew, spotted flycatcher and swift. 
 
In terms of great crested newt, there are no ponds evident within 250m of the site. One 
record for great crested newt is approximately 400m from the site but the pond is 
separated from the site by the A495 and an expanse of largely sub-optimal habitat. There 
is also a stream which is also likely to present a barrier to movement. The development 
site itself is considered unsuitable for supporting great crest newt. Regarding water vole, 
the development site is not suitable for supporting water vole. 
 
As discussed above, it is proposed to remove approximately 150m of the roadside 
hedgerow to accommodate the visibility splays which represents a significant loss of 
priority habitat (Environment (Wales) Act 2016 and Powys Local Biodiversity Action Plan) 
and is contrary to LDP policy DM2. It is proposed to replant the hedgerow behind the 
visibility splays and proposed new fencing which is welcomed. It is recommended that the 
replating is secured through condition with the submission of sufficient details regarding 
species mix, planting density and aftercare measures.  
 
In respect of the netting of the roadside hedgerow, The Local Planning Authority concurs 
with the view of the Chief Planning Officer for Wales as set out within their letter of 6th 
June 2019 that the netting of hedgerows is not supported as a routine practice.  
Furthermore netting should only be considered as a last resort measure, after a full 
consideration of other alternatives and under exceptional circumstances only following 
the grant of planning permission. Development Management has requested that the 
netting is removed, however, the Planning Authority has no power to insist on netting 
removal prior to any decision being made on an application or to enter land and remove 
netting.  
 
Subject to the use of conditions, and on the basis of the advice received from the Council’s 

Tudalen 56



Ecologist, it is considered that the development would not unacceptably adversely affect 
protected species in accordance with LDP Policy DM2. 
 
Water Framework Directive 
 
NRW has reviewed the additional information accompanying the application including soil 
sampling test results which confirm the soil to be suitable for an earth banked slurry 
lagoon at this location, and that it will be built to comply with the requirements of The 
Water Resources (Control of Agricultural Pollution) (Wales) Regulations 2021.  
 
The information also refers to pollution prevention measures. NRW have confirmed that 
they have no objections in respect of pollution to surface or groundwaters subject to 
compliance with the aforementioned regulations and pollution prevention measures and 
that the development is required to be constructed in accordance with the supporting 
information by condition. Therefore, it is considered that the development complies with 
Criterion 4 of LDP Policy DM2. 
 
Biodiversity enhancement 
 
It is proposed to plant the lagoon wall banks with a suitable wildflower seed mix to create 
additional habitat area. This is welcomed as a biodiversity enhancement and, together 
with the replanting of the roadside hedgerow and additional hedgerow along the north-
western boundary of the application site, will provide a net benefit for biodiversity in 
accordance with the requirements of Part 1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 
2016. It is recommended that the implementation and long-term management is 
conditioned to ensure that a net benefit for biodiversity occurs in accordance with LDP 
Policy DM2. 
 
Highway safety and movement 
 
Public representations and the Community Council have raised concerns over increased 
traffic on the highway network together with the inadequacy of the existing access and 
that the traffic speed survey was carried out when there were speed restrictions on the 
highway. The Local Member called the application in on the grounds of highways. 
 
LDP Policy DM13 confirms that applications must demonstrate that the development has 
been designed and located to minimise the impacts on the transport network - journey 
times, resilience and efficient operation - whilst ensuring that highway safety for all 
transport users is not detrimentally impacted upon. In accordance with LDP policies DM13 
and T1, development proposals are expected to meet all highway access requirements, 
(for all transport users), vehicular parking standards and demonstrate that the strategic 
and local highway network can absorb the traffic impacts of the development without 
adversely affecting the safe and efficient flow of traffic on the network or that traffic 
impacts can be managed to acceptable levels to reduce and mitigate any adverse impacts 
from the development. 
 

Tudalen 57



Access would be gained via the existing access off the B4389 highway. As noted above, 
slurry would be transported via tanker to the site using the highway network and it is 
proposed to alter the existing access in terms of providing visibility splays etc to meet the 
required highways standards. 
 
A traffic speed survey was conducted between the 19th April 2021 and 7th May 2021 to 
assess traffic speeds to inform the required visibility splays. Public representations have 
referred to the survey being inaccurate because there were restrictions on the highway 
during the timeframe. The Highway Authority have confirmed that there were no notified 
works on the B4389 close to the location during the speed survey timeframe and as such 
the speed survey results are considered to be accurate. 
 
Following the submission of revised plans, the Highway Authority have not objected to 
the development, subject to the use of conditions to require the access to be constructed 
to the appropriate highways standards and specifications. On the basis of the advice 
received from the Highway Authority, subject to the use of the recommended conditions, 
it is considered that the development would meet all highway access requirements and 
that the highway network can absorb the traffic impacts in accordance with LDP Policies 
T1 and DM13. 
 
Historic environment 
 
Public representations have raised concerns that the development is close to areas of 
archaeological interest. 
 
LDP Policy SP7 – Safeguarding of Strategic Resources and Assets, seeks to safeguard 
historic assets from unacceptable development so as to protect them for the future well-
being of the county. This policy echoes the objectives of Planning Policy Wales and  
Technical Advice Note 24. 
 
Setting of listed buildings 
 
The Planning Authority is required to have special regard to the desirability of preserving 
listed buildings or their settings under section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 
 
There is one listed building/structure within 1km of the application site; Tanhouse Bridge 
(Cadw ID 26961), located approximately 700m to the south-west of the application site 
along the A495 highway. The bridge is grade II listed and the list description describes 
the bridge as a single arch bridge in coursed masonry. The arch is segmental, about 6m 
span and has on each face an enlarged keystone which touches a square string course. 
Low parapets each side with flat coping stones, with piers at each corner. The reason for 
listed is given as ‘a minor early C19 bridge which has retained its vernacular character’. 
 
Due to topography and intervening vegetation, there will be no direct visibility between 
the development and the listed building/structure. In combination with the acceptability of 

Tudalen 58



the development in respect of landscape impacts, it is concluded that the development 
would not harm the setting of Tanhouse Bridge in accordance with LDP Policy SP7 and 
section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 
 
Archaeological remains 
 
Public representations have referred to the site being close to areas of archaeological 
interest. Clwyd Powys Archaeological Trust have confirmed that there are no 
archaeological impacts resulting from the development. On the basis of CPAT’s 
comments, it is concluded that the development would not have an unacceptable adverse 
impact on archaeological remains in accordance with LDP Policy SP7. 
 
Setting of Scheduled Monuments 
 
There is a policy presumption in favour of safeguarding Scheduled Ancient Monuments 
and their settings. The site is within 2km of the following Scheduled Monuments: 
 
MG044 Mathrafal Castle 
MG231 Bryn Y Saethau Hillfort 
MG232 Ffridd Mathrafal Hillfort 
MG124 Pentre Camp 
 
The above scheduled monuments are located inside 2km of the proposed development, 
but Cadw have advised that apart from MG231 Bryn y Saethau Hillfort, intervening 
topography and vegetation block all views between them. Consequently the development 
will have no impact on the settings of these scheduled monuments. 
 
In respect of Scheduled monument MG231 Bryn y Saethau Hillfort, the Scheduled 
monument is located approximately 500m to the northwest of the development. It 
comprises the remains of an Iron Age hillfort, located in a cleared area within conifer 
forest. Cadw have advised that the development will be visible in part of the identified 
significant view from Bryn y Saethau Hillfort but not in one of the specific views. In the 
significant view it will be partly screened by existing vegetation and whilst it will be obvious 
during the construction phase, once the grass has grown on the mounds surrounding the 
lagoon it will be much less conspicuous. As such whilst there may be a very slight visual 
change in the view from the monument this will not have any effect on the way that it is 
experienced, understood and appreciated. Consequently, Cadw have advised that the 
development will have no impact on the setting of scheduled monument MG231.  
 
On the basis of Cadw’s comments, it is concluded that the development would not have 
an unacceptable adverse impact on the setting of the identified Scheduled Monuments in 
accordance with LDP Policy SP7. 
 
Other heritage assets  
 
The development is not located within proximity of a conservation area, a registered park 

Tudalen 59



and garden or a registered historic landscape such that there would be an impact from 
the development. 
 
Public right of way 
 
Criterion 9 of LDP Policy DM13 states that proposals will only be supported where the 
public rights of way network are enhanced and integrated within the layout of the 
development proposal; or appropriate mitigation measures are put in place where 
necessary. Policy SP7 lists the public right of way network as a recreational asset and 
states that development proposals must not have an unacceptable adverse impact on the 
asset or its operation. 
 
Whilst the Countryside Services Department have advised that the development would 
directly affect public right of way 232/20(A)/1, further discussions with the Countryside 
Services department have confirmed that the right of way travels along the south-western 
boundary of the application site, rather than being directly impacted by the proposed 
development. Powys Ramblers and public representations have also raised concern over 
the impact of the development upon the right of way along with safety concerns of users 
of the right of way. 
 
The submission indicates that a 2m wide corridor would be fenced out along the route of 
the right of way within the application site (with an access stile at its southern end, open 
at its northern end). Countryside Services have confirmed that the proposed fencing is 
acceptable subject to the use of a condition to require the fencing to be constructed, and 
recommend that the fence should be approximately 3m in height given what it is 
protecting. 
 
In terms of users of the right of way being able to gain access to the lagoon, the 
submission indicates that a 1.2m high fence would be constructed around the perimeter 
of the lagoon to prevent access and coupled with the proposed fenced corridor, it is 
considered that adequate measures are proposed to restrict access from the public right 
of way. 
 
The visual impact of the development when viewing from the public right of way has been 
accepted elsewhere in this report and given that the public right of way and its users 
would be physically protected from the development so that use of the asset would be 
maintained, it is considered that the development complies with LDP Policies SP7 and 
DM13. 
 
Impact on tourism assets 
 
Public representations and the Community Council have raised concerns over the impact 
of the development upon existing tourism assets including specific accommodation as 
well as public rights of way and public vantage points as well as the general Powys 
landscape and the visual impact as seen from the B4389 highway. In addition, the impact 
upon the ability of the area to host the National Eisteddfod again is raised. 

Tudalen 60



 
As discussed above public right of way 232/20(A)/1 and the B4389 highway are located 
adjacent to the development site whilst other public rights are more distant. The tourist 
accommodation referred to in public representations is located approximately 640m to 
the north-west of the application across agricultural land and the A495 highway. The 
immediate area’s attraction is considered to be the landscape, caravan parks and other 
visitor accommodation as well as other features of visitor interest in the area such as Bryn 
y Saethau Hillfort scheduled monument and Mathrafal Woods (over 450m) as wells as 
and villages such as Meifod at greater distances. In respect of the National Eisteddfod, 
the event is a celebration of the culture and language in Wales, focused around 
competitions but with many events and activities held at the site over the course of the 
week. It is therefore considered to be a tourist attraction and regeneration project, albeit 
an attraction/project which travels from place to place on an annual basis. It is noted that 
the Eisteddfod was hosted on land to the north of the site across the A495 highway, at its 
closest point within approximately 430 metres in 2003 and 2015.  
 
Policy DM13 of the Local Development Plan sets out that developments must not have 
an unacceptable impact upon existing and established tourism assets and attractions. 
The Council is committed to safeguarding tourism in Powys as the significant contribution 
it makes to the local economy is recognised. As such, new development proposals should 
not decrease the attraction to assets important to the tourism offer. 
 
As noted within the amenity section of this report, it is not considered that the development 
would have an unacceptable impact upon amenity. In addition, this report notes that there 
will be no significant harm with regards to landscape and visual impacts, or unacceptable 
impacts to the enjoyment of the rights of way network. In light of this, it is concluded that 
the development would not have an unacceptable adverse impact on existing and 
established tourism assets and attractions, including the attractiveness of the Powys 
landscape, the identified recreational and historic assets as visitor attractions, the ability 
to host the National Eisteddfod or the identified visitor accommodation in accordance with 
LDP Policy DM13. 
 
Waste 
 
LDP Policy DM15 requires development proposals to demonstrate how the production of 
waste will be minimised during all stages of the development and how the waste materials 
that do arise will be managed in a sustainable way and that adequate provision has been 
made in the design of the development for the storage and collection, composting and 
recycling of waste materials. 
 
Although the site consists of sloping land, given that the excavated earth would be used 
to create the mounds, a significant level of waste is not expected. As such the 
development is not considered to be contrary to LDP Policy DM15. 
 
Welsh language 
 

Tudalen 61



LDP Policy DM12 requires that development proposals on windfall sites for 10 or more 
dwellings in identified towns and large villages shall be subject to a Welsh Language 
Impact Assessment. Given that the development is not a residential housing development 
and the site is not a windfall site within a town or large village, the requirements of LDP 
Policy DM12 are not applicable to the development. 
 
Safety 
 
Public representations have raised concern over the safety of users of the public right of 
way and highway as well as the development being sited in an unsupervised location.  
 
The perimeter of the lagoon would be fenced to deter/prevent unauthorised access and 
this approach is recommended by the Health and Safety Executive. In addition, the public 
right of way route would be fenced. It is proposed to translocate/replant the roadside 
hedgerow which again would prevent access from the highway, and it is understood that 
the site will have a gated access.  
 
Whilst the public concerns are appreciated, it is considered that appropriate safety 
measures have been included to ensure the development does not cause an 
unacceptable risk to the public in respect of safety in accordance with LDP Policy DM13. 
 
Water pipes and electric lines/cables 
 
Public representations and the Local Member have raised concerns over the 
development potentially affecting water pipes and electric lines. 
 
Criterion 12 of LDP Policy DM12 requires that adequate utility services exist or will be 
provided readily and timely without unacceptable adverse effect on the surrounding 
environment and communities. 
 
Hafren Dryfrdwy have not objected to the development in terms of water pipes, although 
it is noted that the planning history indicates a water pipe on the land.  
 
There is no evidence to suggest that the water or electric supply would be affected by the 
development and as such it is considered that the development does not conflict with LDP 
Policy DM13. 
 
Contaminated land 
 
Public representations have referred to the land being potentially contaminated.  
 
LDP Policy DM10 states that development proposals on contaminated will be permitted 
where they do not: 
1. Result in any additional problems of ground instability or contamination either  
on or off site and shall remediate the contamination / instability. 
2. Unacceptably adversely affect public health and safety, nature conservation,  

Tudalen 62



historic or archaeological interests. 
 
The Council’s Contaminated Land Officer has advised that there are no recorded 
contamination issues associated with the site. Therefore the Officer has confirmed that 
that there are no known contamination issues with the site historically or currently. It is 
not known whether the public representations refer to the site being contaminated at 
present or whether there are concerns that the site will be contaminated following the 
development, however on the basis of the comments received from the Contaminated 
Land Officer, it is considered that the development does not conflict with LDP Policy 
DM10. 
 
Agricultural land 
 
The development would be located on agricultural land classified as grade 3b by the 
Predictive Agricultural Land Classification (ALC) Map.  As such the land is not classified 
as the most flexible, productive and efficient in response to inputs. Therefore the 
development would not conflict with Planning Policy Wales or TAN6 in this respect.  
 
Placemaking and Wellbeing Goals  
 
Planning Policy Wales has been amended following the introduction of Well-being of 
Future Generations Act. PPW plays a significant contribution to the improvement of well-
being in all its aspects as defined by the statutory well-being goals. It embeds the spirit of 
the Well-being of Future Generations Act, through moving us towards a low carbon, 
resilient society, of providing secure and well-paid jobs, and of building well-connected 
environments for everyone in Wales that improves our lives and health and enhances our 
well-being.  
 
PPW also promotes placemaking and states the following;  
 
Productive and Enterprising places are those which promote our economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being by providing well-connected employment and 
economic development in pleasant surroundings. These places are designed and sited 
to promote healthy lifestyles and tackle climate change by making them easy to walk and 
cycle to and around, access by public transport, minimising the use of non-renewable 
resources and using renewable and low carbon energy sources.  
 
Ministers advised in June 2019 that placemaking should form part of all decisions and 
have considered measures to call in applications where strategic placemaking has not 
been considered.  
 
Placemaking is a holistic approach to the planning and design of development and 
spaces, focused on positive outcomes. Placemaking considers the context, function and 
relationships between a development site and its wider surroundings. This will be true for 
major developments creating new places as well as small developments created within a 
wider place.  

Tudalen 63



 
The key principles for ensuring ‘Right Development in the Right Place’ according to PPW 
are as follows;  
 
i. Growing our economy in a sustainable manner – the planning system should 

enable development which contributed to long term economic well-being, making 
the best use of existing infrastructure and planning for new supporting 
infrastructure and services.  

ii. Making the best use of resources - The planning system has a vital role to play in 
making development resilient to climate change, decarbonising society and 
developing a circular economy for the benefit of both the built and natural 
environments and to contribute to the achievement of the well-being goals. 

iii. Facilitating accessible and healthy environments - Our land use choices and the 
places we create should be accessible for all and support healthy lives. High 
quality places are barrier-free and inclusive to all members of society. They ensure 
everyone can live, work, travel and play in a way that supports good physical and 
mental health.  

iv. Creating and sustaining communities - The planning system must work in an 
integrated way to maximise its contribution to well-being. It can achieve this by 
creating well-designed places and cohesive rural and urban communities which 
can be sustained by ensuring the appropriate balance of uses and density, making 
places where people want to be and interact with others.  

v. Maximising environmental protection and limiting environmental impact - Natural, 
historic and cultural assets must be protected, promoted, conserved and 
enhanced. Negative environmental impacts should be avoided in the wider public 
interest.  

 
PPW provides guidance on the national sustainable placemaking outcomes and their 
relationship to PPW themes and Well-being Goals. It is considered that the proposed 
development is in accordance with both the placemaking and well-being goals on the 
following grounds:  

 
  The development will aid in the functioning of an existing farming enterprise to the 

benefit of the rural economy.  
  The development will assist in ensuring the future viability of the farm for future 

generations and promotes the retention of farming families in the locality to the 
benefit of a vibrant Welsh culture.  

  The development is located close to existing transport networks.  
  Impact on the environment and historic and cultural assets will be acceptable. 
  The public right of way will be protected and maintained. 
  The impact upon communities and local residents is considered acceptable. 

 
Climate Change 
 
PPW states that the planning system has a vital role to play in making development 
resilient to climate change, decarbonising society and developing a circular economy for  

Tudalen 64



the benefit of both the built and natural environments and to contribute to the achievement 
of the well-being goals. The Environment (Wales) Act 2016 sets a legal target of reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions in Wales by at least 80% in 2050 with interim targets set for 
2020, 2030 and 2040. Welsh Government also have a legal commitment to net zero by 
2050 and an ambition to achieve this sooner if possible.  
There are two parts to the issue of climate change within planning, these being the extent 
a development contributes towards the generation greenhouse gasses and the extent a 
development has considered and adopted means to make the operation resilient to the 
effects of climate change. 
 
it is evident that the proposal will make some contribution to greenhouse gas emissions, 
as do many operations and developments, however, this does not in itself mean that it is 
unacceptable and does not provide a full picture of the issue. Public representations and 
the community council have referred to additional road miles being generated by the 
development. It may be considered that the transportation of the slurry from the main 
farmstead would have climate change implications, but there is a wider argument put 
forward in support of the application that it will contribute to British self-sufficiency in the 
dairy industry and the principle of reducing imported food stock which will have a 
significant reduction in carbon emissions from transportation overall. As it currently stands 
there are no specific planning policy requirements that dictate a certain amount of 
greenhouse gas generation from a development would be unacceptable and neither does 
it state intensive agricultural development should not be supported for this reason. Rather, 
by making determinations in line with the development plan, it can be reconciled that the 
development is acceptable in planning terms. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The application is in respect of the construction of an earth banked slurry lagoon to store 
slurry to meet the current needs of the farming enterprise at Newbridge Farm as required 
by The Water Resources (Control of Agricultural Pollution) (Wales) Regulations 2021. 
The public representations and consultee comments have been considered and the 
development is considered acceptable subject to the use of conditions set out below. The 
development is considered to be compliant with local and national planning policy and it 
is for that reason that the development is recommended for approval. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve. 
 
Conditions 
 

1. The development shall begin not later than five years from the date of this decision. 
 

2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 
plans and documents; Plan titled ‘Layout Plan’ by Gary Owen dated August 2021, 
Plan titled ‘Proposed Lagoon’ by Gary Owen dated August 2021, Letter titled 
“Planning Application re Installation of earth banked slurry lagoon and associated 

Tudalen 65



works. Your Ref 20/2130/FUL” dated 25th August 2021 by CGW Owen, Plan titled 
‘Splay to West’ by Gary Owen dated November 2021, Plan titled ‘Splay looking 
East’ by Gary Owen dated November 2021, Plan titled ‘ Proposed slurry lagoon 
Wildflower grass seed location’ by Gary Owen dated October 2021, Plan titled 
‘Proposed Slurry Lagoon Sections’ by Gary Owen dated August 2021, Location 
Plan titled ‘OS Plan Black/White’ Produced 23/02/2021 scaled to 1:2500, CGW 
Owen ‘Access Statement: An Application for the Installation of A Slurry Lagoon 
and Silage Effluent Tank at Newbridge Farm, Meifod’ 18th January 2021, Gary 
Owen email: ‘Re: 20/2130/FUL’ 24 February 2021, Gary Owen email: ‘Re: 
Planning Application 20/2130/FUL – Newbridge Farm, Meifod’ 24 February 2021, 
Gary Owen email: ‘Re: Planning Application 20/2130/FUL – Newbridge Farm, 
Meifod’ 23 February 2021, Soil sampling test by Celtest, test report ref. TR 784980 
dated 10 March 2021, Letter by CGW Owen dated 4th June 2021 in respect of 
pollution prevention measures. 

 
3. Prior to the commencement of development, a Hedgerow Replacement and 

Aftercare Scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The submitted scheme shall include a scaled drawing 
identifying the location of hedgerow replacement planting and a written 
specification clearly describing species, sizes, densities and planting numbers 
proposed, as well as aftercare measures. The approved scheme shall be 
implemented in full and maintained thereafter. 

 
4. Prior to the commencement of development, a Wildflower Area Creation and 

Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The submitted scheme shall include a scaled drawing 
identifying the wildflower area and a written specification clearly describing 
species-mix, time of sowing, and long-term management specification. The 
approved scheme shall be implemented in full and maintained thereafter. 

 
5. Prior to the commencement of development, a Hedgerow Planting Scheme shall 

be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
submitted scheme shall include a scaled drawing identifying the location of 
hedgerow to be planted along the north-western boundary and a written 
specification clearly describing species, sizes, densities and planting numbers 
proposed, as well as aftercare measures. The approved scheme shall be 
implemented in full and maintained thereafter. 

 
6. Prior to any construction works occurring on the proposed lagoon, a 2 metres wide 

fenced corridor to protect Public Right of Way 232/20(A)/1 shall be erected for the 
extent of the application site as indicated on the Layout Plan dated August 2021 
and uploaded to Powys County Council’s Planning Access website on 17th 
September 2021. Prior to the erection of the fencing, details of the fence (design 
and height of fencing) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority and thereafter implemented in accordance with the details as 
approved. 

Tudalen 66



 
7. No development shall commence until provision is made within the curtilage of the 

site for the parking of all construction vehicles together with a vehicle turning area. 
The parking and turning area shall be constructed to a depth of 0.4 metres in 
crusher run or sub-base and maintained free from obstruction at all times such that 
all vehicles serving the site shall park within the site and both enter and leave the 
site in a forward gear for the duration of the construction of the development. 
 

8. No other development shall commence until the access has been constructed so 
that there is clear visibility from a point 1.05 metres above ground level at the 
centre of the access and 2.4 metres distant from the edge of the adjoining 
carriageway, to points 0.6 metres above ground level at the edge of the adjoining 
carriageway and 160 metres distant in a westerly direction and 130m in a easterly 
direction measured from the centre of the access along the edge of the adjoining 
carriageway.  Nothing shall be planted, erected or allowed to grow on the area(s) 
of land so formed that would obstruct the visibility and the visibility shall be 
maintained free from obstruction for as long as the development hereby permitted 
remains in existence. 
 

9. Upon formation of the visibility splays as detailed above the centreline of any new 
or relocated hedge should be positioned not less than 1.0 metre to the rear of the 
visibility splay and retained in this position as long as the development remains in 
existence. 
 

10. Before any other development is commenced the area of the access to be used 
by vehicles is to be constructed to a minimum of 410mm depth, comprising a 
minimum of 250mm of sub-base material, 100mm of bituminous macadam base 
course material and 60mm of bituminous macadam binder course material for a 
distance of 15 metres from the edge of the adjoining carriageway.  Any use of 
alternative materials is to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior 
to the access being constructed. 
 

11. Prior to the first operational use of the development, provision shall be made within 
the curtilage of the site for the parking of not less than two tractor & trailers together 
with a turning space such that all vehicles serving the site my both enter and leave 
the site in a forward gear. The parking and turning areas shall be retained for their 
designated use for as long as the development hereby permitted remains in 
existence.  
 

12. Prior to the first beneficial use of the development the area of the access to be 
used by vehicles is to be finished in a 40mm bituminous surface course material 
for a distance of 15 metres from the edge of the adjoining carriageway. This area 

Tudalen 67



will be maintained to this standard for as long as the development remains in 
existence. 
 

13. The gradient of the access shall be constructed so as not to exceed 1 in 20 for the 
first 15 metres measured from edge of the adjoining carriageway along the centre 
line of the access and shall be retained at this gradient for as long as the 
development remains in existence. 

 
14. The width of the access carriageway, constructed as Condition 10 above, shall be 

not less than 5.5 metres for a minimum distance of 15 metres along the access 
measured from the adjoining edge of carriageway of the county highway and shall 
be maintained at this width for as long as the development remains in existence. 

 
15. Any vehicular entrance gates installed within the application site shall be set back 

at least 15 metres distant from the edge of the adjoining carriageway and shall be 
constructed so as to be incapable of opening towards the highway and shall be 
retained in this position and form of construction for as long as the 
dwelling/development hereby permitted remains in existence. 

 
16. No surface water drainage from the site shall be allowed to discharge onto the 

county highway. 
 

17. The Pollution Prevention Measures set out within the Letter from GCW Owen 
dated 4th June 2021 shall be implemented in full during construction works. 
 

18. The development shall only be used for the storage of slurry produced by the 
agricultural unit known as Newbridge Farm. 
 
 

 
Reasons 
 

1. Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 

2. To ensure adherence to the approved plans in the interests of clarity and a 
satisfactory development. 

 
3. To comply with Policies DM2, DM4 and DM13 of the Powys Local Development 

Plan (2011-2026) in relation to The Natural Environment and Landscape and 
design, and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, 
February 2021), Technical Advice Note (TAN) 5: Nature Conservation and 
Planning (2009) and Part1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

 
4. To comply with Policy DM2 of the Powys Local Development Plan (2011-2026) in 

Tudalen 68



relation to The Natural Environment, and to meet the requirements of Planning 
Policy Wales (Edition 11, February 2021), Technical Advice Note (TAN) 5: Nature 
Conservation and Planning (2009) and Part1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) 
Act 2016. 

 
5. To comply with Policies DM2, DM4 and DM13 of the Powys Local Development 

Plan (2011-2026) in relation to The Natural Environment and Landscape and 
design, and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, 
February 2021), Technical Advice Note (TAN) 5: Nature Conservation and 
Planning (2009) and Part1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

 
6. To protect public right of way 232/20(A)/1 during construction and use of the 

development and to ensure the safety of the users of the right of way in accordance 
with Policies SP7 and DM13 of the Powys Local Development Plan (2011-2026). 

 
7.  to 16. In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policies DM13 and T1 

of the Powys Local Development Plan (2011-2026). 
 

17. To prevent pollution in accordance with Policy DM2 of the Powys Local 
Development Plan (2011-2026). 
 

18. To comply with Policies DM2 and DM13 of the Powys Local Development Plan 
(2011-2026) in relation to The Natural Environment and the amenities enjoyed by 
the occupants of neighbouring properties, and to meet the requirements of 
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, February 2021) and Technical Advice Note 
(TAN) 5: Nature Conservation and Planning (2009). 
 

 
 

 
Informatives 
 
Work should halt immediately and Natural Resources Wales (NRW) contacted for 
advice in the event that protected species are discovered during the course of the 
development. To proceed without seeking the advice of NRW may result in an offence 
under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 and/or the Wildlife &  
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) being committed. NRW can be contacted by phone 
at 0300 065 3000. 
 
Birds – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended)  
 
All nesting birds, their nests, eggs, and young are protected by law and it is an offence 
to:  
  

  intentionally kill, injure or take any wild bird  
  intentionally take, damage or destroy the next of any wild bird whilst it is in use or 

Tudalen 69



being built  
  intentionally take or destroy the egg of any wild bird  
  intentionally (or recklessly in England and Wales) disturb any wild bird listed on 
  Schedule 1 while it is nest building, or at a nest containing eggs or young, or disturb 

the dependent young on such a bird.  
  
The maximum penalty that can be imposed - in respect of a single bird, nest or egg – is  
a fine of up to 5,000 pounds, six months imprisonment or both.  
  
The applicant is therefore reminded that it is an offence under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) to remove or work on any hedge, tree or building 
where that work involves the taking, damaging or destruction of any nest of any wild bird 
while the nest is in use or being built (usually between late February and late August or 
late September in the case of swifts, swallows or house martins). If a nest is discovered 
while work is being undertaken, all work must stop, and advice sought from Natural 
Resources Wales and the Council's Ecologist. 
 
Advice from Natural Resources Wales (NRW) 
Please note we will require sample results from trial pits dug to determine suitability for 
The earth bank lagoon – permeability cannot exceed 10.9m/s, typically a clay content of 
20% to 30% with sufficient material available to ensure an impermeable layer at least 
1m thick or detail regarding a liner to be used. We have received calculations for the 
sizing of the lagoon and they are considered acceptable.  
Facilities where slurry is generated must comply with the Water Resources (Control of  
Pollution) (Silage, Slurry and Agricultural Fuel Oil) Regulations 2010. Site operators 
should ensure that there is no possibility of contaminated water entering and polluting 
surface or groundwater. A minimum of 14 days’ notice must be given to Natural 
Resources Wales in writing before construction of a new, substantially enlarged or 
reconstructed store containing slurry or silage begins. 
 
Please refer to the link below for further information:  
http://naturalresources.wales/guidance-andadvice/businesssectors/farming/good 
farming-practice/?lang=en 
 
Advice from Powys Highway Authority 
 
NOTE: THE ATTENTION OF THE APPLICANT MUST BE DRAWN TO RELATED 
HIGHWAYS LEGISLATION WHICH MAKES PROVISION FOR THE FOLLOWING; 
 
1. Under Section 184 of the Highways Act 1980, it is a requirement that a licence is 
obtained from the Highway Authority, in addition to Planning Permission, for vehicular 
access works.   
 
a. The need to avoid interference with and to make provision for the carrying of 
existing highway drainage under the access to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority. 
 

Tudalen 70



b. The requirement of the Highway Authority for the Developer to ensure that no 
surface water is discharged onto the County Highway or, without prior approval, into the 
highway drainage system. 
 
2. Under Section 50 of the New Roads & Street Works Act 1991 it is a requirement 
that a Streetworks licence is obtained from the Highway Authority to place, or to retain, 
apparatus in the highway and thereafter to inspect, maintain, adjust, repair, alter or renew 
the apparatus, change its position or remove it.   
 
3. The need to inform and obtain the consent of Statuary Undertakers (Electricity, 
Water, Gas, BT), Land Drainage Authority, etc. to the works. 
 
4. The New Roads & Street Works Act 1991 requires that all works, be properly 
notified and approved prior to commencement.   
 
_______________________________________________ 
Case Officer: Kate Bowen, Senior Planning Officer 
Tel: 01938 551268 E-mail: kate.bowen@powys.gov.uk     

Tudalen 71



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of Way Committee Report 
 

Application 
Number: 

22/0564/FUL Grid Ref: E: 287914 
N: 246708 

Community 
Council: 

 Llanwrtyd Wells 
Community 

Valid Date: 14.04.2022 

 
Applicant: Mr Didar Singh 
 
Location: Spar Stores, 1 Irfon Terrace, Llanwrtyd Wells, LD5 4RB.   
 
Proposal: Continuation of siting of a hot takeaway food trailer (following conditional 
approval 18/0778/FUL) 
 
Application Type: Full Application 
 
 
The reason for Committee determination 
 
The Local Member called in the application due to concerns raised surrounding: 
 
a) it obstructs a right of way to adjoining properties 
b) is unsightly 
c) is unnecessary as there are abundant take away facilities elsewhere in the Town 
 
Consultee Responses 
 
Consultee                                              Received 

 

PCC-Built Heritage Officer  27th May 2022 

The proposal sees the retention of a fast food van in a central position within a small town 
centre, opposite a listed building. 

In respect of 18/0778/FUL, the built heritage officer commented that the siting of the take 
away van ‘would not have an adverse impact on the setting of the listed Neuadd Arms 
Hotel’. Due to the location at the ‘service end’ of the Spar shop, adjacent to bins and other 
related paraphernalia pertaining to the operation of a grocery shop. 

Paragraph 6.1.10 of Planning Policy Wales  which states, “Where a development proposal 
affects a listed building or its setting, the primary material consideration is the statutory 
requirement to have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building, or its 
setting, or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.” 

Tudalen 73

4.3



The continued siting of the take-away van would lead to it becoming a more permanent 
feature of the street-scene opposite the listed hotel. A fast food van is not a usual 
townscape feature. Looking at the end of the building prior to the installation of the van and 
much advertising signage, it appears to have been a fairly plain and neat space. 

Taking this into account, it would appear likely that this would not have a positive impact 
on the setting of the listed building. However, shielded as it is by the wooden fence, the 
view of the van is not obvious. 

Broadly, if a catering space is required on a more permanent basis then an extension or 
conversion of part of the existing shop should be considered. The repeated renewal of 
temporary approval means the feature becomes more permanent. 

 

Welsh Water                                                                                                12th May 2022 

Since the proposal intends on utilising an alternative to mains drainage we would advise 
that the applicant seek advice from Natural Resources Wales and the Building Regulations 
Authority as both are responsible to regulate alternative methods of drainage. 

 

However, should circumstances change and a connection to the public sewerage 
system/public sewerage treatment works is preferred we must be re-consulted on this 
application. 

 

Notwithstanding this, we would request that if you are minded to grant Planning Consent 
for the above development that the Advisory Notes listed below are included within the 
consent to ensure no detriment to existing residents or the environment and to Dwr Cymru 
Welsh Water's assets.  

 

Advisory Notes 

 

The applicant may need to apply to Dwr Cymru / Welsh Water for any connection to the 
public sewer under S106 of the Water industry Act 1991. If the connection to the public 
sewer network is either via a lateral drain (i.e. a drain which extends beyond the connecting 
property boundary) or via a new sewer (i.e. serves more than one property), it is now a 
mandatory requirement to first enter into a Section 104 Adoption Agreement (Water 

Tudalen 74



Industry Act 1991). The design of the sewers and lateral drains must also conform to the 
Welsh Ministers Standards for Gravity Foul Sewers and Lateral Drains, and conform with 
the publication "Sewers for Adoption"- 7th Edition. Further information can be obtained via 
the Developer Services pages of www.dwrcymru.com 

The applicant is also advised that some public sewers and lateral drains may not be 
recorded on our maps of public sewers because they were originally privately owned and 
were transferred into public ownership by nature of the Water Industry (Schemes for 
Adoption of Private Sewers) Regulations 2011.  The presence of such assets may affect 
the proposal.  In order to assist us in dealing with the proposal the applicant may contact 
Dwr Cymru Welsh Water to establish the location and status of the apparatus. Under the 
Water Industry Act 1991 Dwr Cymru Welsh Water has rights of access to its apparatus at 
all times. 

 

Our response is based on the information provided by your application.  Should the 
proposal alter during the course of the application process we kindly request that we are 
re-consulted and reserve the right to make new representation. 

 

PCC-(S) Highways 25th Apr 2022 

Powys County Council as Highway Authority do not wish to comment on this application as 
the access is onto a trunk road which comes under the jurisdiction of the Welsh 
Government. 

 

Environmental Protection 28th Apr 2022 

Environmental Protection has no objections. 

 

 

WG - Highways Directorate 18th May 2022 

I refer to your consultation of 21/04/2022 regarding the above planning application and 
advise  

that the Welsh Government as highway authority for the A483 trunk road does not issue a  

Tudalen 75



direction in respect of this application. 

 

Natural Resources Wales (Mid Wales) 
DPAS 

27th Apr 2022 

We have reviewed the planning application submitted to us, and from the information 
provided we do not consider that the proposed development affects a matter listed on our 
Consultation Topics, Development Planning Advisory Service: Consultation Topics 
(September 2018):  https://naturalresources.wales/guidance-and-advice/business-
sectors/planning-and-development/our-role-in-planning-and-development/our-role-in-
planning-and-development/?lang=en. We therefore do not have any comment to make on 
the proposed development.  

Please note that our decision not to comment does not rule out the potential for the 
proposed development to affect other interests, including environmental interests of local 
importance.  

The applicant should be advised that, in addition to planning permission, it is their 
responsibility to ensure that they secure all other permits/consents relevant to their 
development. 

 

Representations 
 
1No. objection was raised from public comments. This can be summarised as: 
 
-Out of character of area 
-Sufficient take-away facilities in local area 
-Previous Temporary approval on site (18/0778/FUL) was given on the principle that 
permanent catering facilities would be built on site. 
 
Planning History 
 
App Ref Description Decision       Date 

 
18/0778/FUL    Continuation of siting of a hot         Conditional Approval       28/12/2018    

   takeaway food preparation trailer  
 
 
Principal Planning Constraints 
 
Within 50m of Listed Building Neuadd Arms Hotel 
  

Tudalen 76



Within 50m of Listed Building Llanwrtyd War Memorial Institute 
 

LDP Development Boundaries Llanwrtyd Wells/ Llanwrtyd 
 
Phosphorous Welsh River SACs 
 

 
 

Trunk Road A483(T) 
 
  
 
Principal Planning Policies 
 
Policy Policy Description Year Local Plan 

 
PPW Planning Policy Wales (ED.11) National Policy 

 
FW Future Wales: the National Plan 2040                           National Policy 

 
TAN5 Nature, Conservation and Planning National Policy 

 
TAN11 Noise National Policy 

 
TAN12 Design National Policy 

 
TAN18 Transport National Policy 

 
TAN24 The Historic Environment National Policy 

 
Section 66 of the Planning Act 1990 National Policy 

 
Part 1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 National Policy 

 
T1 Travel, Traffic and Transport Infrastructure Local Development Plan 

2011-2026 
 

DM2 The Natural Environment  Local Development Plan 
2011-2026 
 

DM7 Dark Skies and External Lighting                                  Local Development Plan 
2011-2026 
 

DM13 Design and Resources Local Development Plan 
2011-2026 
 

SP7 Safeguarding of Strategic Resources  
and Assets        

Local Development Plan 
2011-2026 

Tudalen 77



 
R1 New Retail Development Local Development Plan 

2011-2026 
 

R4 Neighbourhood and Village Shops  
and Services 

Local Development Plan 
2011-2026 
 

SPGRD Residential Design Guide (2020) Local Development Plan 
2011-2026 

 
 
Other Legislative Considerations 
 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998  
 
Equality Act 2010  
 
Planning (Wales) Act 2015 (Welsh language)  
 
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
 
Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009 
 
 
Officer Appraisal 
 
Site Location and Description  

 

The application site is located within the Community Council area of Llanwrtyd Wells. It 

is also within the settlement development boundary of Llanwrtyd Wells as defined by the 

Powys Local Development Plan (2018). The site comprises an existing hot food take-

away trailer. To the north lies the A483 Trunk Road, to the east and south are 

neighbouring residential properties and to the west is the Spar/Premier Supermarket. 

There are 2No. grade II listed buildings within 50m of the site of development. These are 

the Neuadd Arms Hotel and Llanwrtyd War Memorial Institute. 

 

The application seeks consent for the continuation of the siting of a hot take-away food 

preparation trailer which measures approximately 6.8 metres in length (including stopping 

blocks and trailer puller), 2.1 meters in width and 3 metres in height at the highest point. 

This application would be for retrospective permission since the trailer is already present 

Tudalen 78



on site.  

 
Principle of Development 

 

Local Development Plan (LDP) policies R1 and R4 set the principle for development such 

as this.  

 

Policy R1 states that within defined retail centre proposals for new retail development 

which would be of a scale and design appropriate to the settlement and in accordance 

with the retail hierarchy will be supported. Llanwrtyd Wells in which the proposal is 

situated is defined under this policy as a local retail centre.  

 

Under policy R4, the establishment of new neighbourhood and village shops or services 

will be approved where they: 

 

1. Are located within a Town, Large Village or Small Village; and 

2. Serve the needs of the local area; and  

3. Do not undermine the retail hierarchy or have an unacceptable adverse impact on 

the vitality and viability of the Retail Centre or other nearby centres and accord 

with Policy R1 

 

It is considered that the proposal meets the criteria of policy R4 as it is located within the 

town of Llanwrtyd Wells, serves the needs of the local area through the provision of 

takeaway services and does not undermine the retail hierarchy or have an unacceptable 

adverse impact on the vitality or viability of the retail centre or other nearby centres.  

 

Concerns have been raised over the need for the development within the local area. It is 

noted that the proposal does not result in the loss of a permanent shop within the Town 

but instead will see the temporary provision of a unit. As the proposal does not therefore 

impact upon the existing supply of retail units within the town, it is not considered that this 

additional temporary unit would further impact upon the vitality or viability of the 

Tudalen 79



surrounding area. 

 

In light of this, the principle of development is considered to fundamentally comply with 

the relevant planning policy. The proposal is for a temporary permission and it is 

recommended that suitably worded condition is applied to any consent granted.  

 

Scale and Design 

 

Siting, appearance, integration, scale, height, massing and design detailing are all key 

matters in determining such applications and must be given careful consideration in 

accordance with Policy DM13 of the LDP. 

 

It is acknowledged that the take-away trailer is partially visible when travelling along the 

A483 trunk road which runs to the north of the application site. The siting of the trailer 

alongside the existing Spar Shop building and the provision of a close boarded timber 

fence on higher land to the north-easterly boundary does however significantly reduce its 

visual appearance within the surrounding townscape. 

 

In addition, since the trailer has a neutral colour (grey) and is of a moderate scale, the 

trailer is not considered to have a significant detrimental impact on the surrounding area 

with regards to colour or scale.  

 

The trailer does have a brightly coloured sign, advertising the sale of fish and chips. It is 

considered to reduce the visual impact of the development, the colour scheme of the 

signage used should be neutral colours. This can be secured by a carefully worded 

condition which has been agreed in principle with the agent of this application. 

 

In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development does fundamentally 

comply with relevant planning policy. 

 

Neighbouring and Public Amenity 

Tudalen 80



 

Consideration has also been given to the impact the proposed development will have 

upon neighbouring properties. Policy DM13 of the LDP states that development should 

not adversely affect the amenities to nearby neighbouring dwellings. 

 

It is considered that given the scale of the trailer, it will not significantly cause detrimental 

impact to public amenity in terms of noise, odour and operating hours. It is also noted that 

the Premier Stores are open until 10pm and thus unlikely to cause a public disturbance 

any more than existing take away facilities in the local area. As part of the application 

process, the Powys County Council Environmental Protection Officer also raised no 

objections to the development. 

 

Overall, it is considered that given the trailer has been in operation previously prior to this 

particular application, it is considered that the continued operation of the trailer will not 

have significant harm on neighbouring amenity or that of the local area.  

 

Further whilst public comments received make the point that there are sufficient take 

away facilities already in the area, it is considered the trailer would not cause 

unacceptable adverse impact on the vitality and viability of these existing services and 

would provide more diverse food service options in the local area and an opportunity for 

local economic growth. As such, it is considered that the trailer would also accord with 

PPW.  

 

Concerns relating to the trailer restricting access to adjoining properties are considered 

to be a civil matter rather than a planning matter. 

 

In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development fundamentally 

complies with relevant planning policy. 

 
Built Heritage 

 

Tudalen 81



Section 66 of the Planning Act 1990 requires that ‘In considering whether to grant 

planning permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting, the local 

planning authority or, as the case may be, the Secretary of State shall have special regard 

to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special 

architectural or historic interest which it possesses’. Policy SP7 of the LDP similarly 

requires that ‘to safeguard strategic resources and assets in the County, development 

proposals must not have an unacceptable adverse impact on the resource or asset and 

its operation’. In this case that asset is the grade II listed Building called the Neuadd Arms 

Hotel. While the Llanwrtyd War Memorial Institute is within 50m of the site, it is separated 

by the Premier Stores and therefore not considered to be impacted. 

 

With regards to this proposal, the Built Heritage Officer notes that overall while the trailer 

would not be a usual feature of the townscape or within the setting of the listed building, 

shielded as it is by the wooden fence, the view of the van is not obvious. 

Whilst some level of concern has been raised it is not considered that the retention of the 

trailer in this position would further harm the setting of nearby listed buildings and subject 

to a condition as recommended above to amend the signing on the unit which would 

further aid in reducing the visual impact of the development it is considered that the 

proposed development can be managed to an acceptable level. 

In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development does fundamentally 

comply with relevant planning policy. 

 
Highways 

 

Under LDP DM13, a safe access, parking and visibility splays are a fundamental 

requirement of any development. 

 

The application does not seek alterations to the existing means of access to the site and 

does not propose any additional parking or creation of new parking. The Local Highway 

Authority and Welsh Government Transport were consulted and have no objections on 

the proposal.  

Tudalen 82



 

In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development fundamentally 

complies with relevant planning policy. 

 

River Wye SAC 

 

The Wye is the largest Welsh SAC river, with a catchment covering much of southern 

Powys and part of the Brecon Beacons National Park before crossing the border into 

England near Hay on Wye. 

 

Under the Habitats Regulations, where a plan or project is likely to have a significant 

effect on a Protected site, either alone or in combination with other plans or projects, and 

where it is not directly connected with or necessary to the management of the site 

(previously designated pursuant to EU retained law) the competent authority must carry 

out an appropriate assessment of the implication of the plan or project in view of the site's 

conservation objectives. Natural Resources Wales has set new phosphate standards for 

the river SACs in Wales. Any proposed development within the SAC catchments that 

might increase the amount of phosphate within the catchment could lead to additional 

damaging effects to the SAC features and, therefore, such proposals must be screened 

through a HRA to determine whether they are likely to have a significant effect on the 

SAC condition. 

 

This application has been screened in accordance with Natural Resources Wales'  advice 

for planning applications within the river Special Areas of Conservation (SACs) 

catchments (updated 26th May 2021). It is considered that since this development is not 

related to the storage, management and spreading of organic materials or increased foul 

waste discharge, it is unlikely to increase phosphate discharge overall. The development 

therefore falls within the following criterion in the interim advice: 

 

• any development that does not increase the volume of foul wastewater 

 

Tudalen 83



On this basis and given the scale and nature of the proposal it is considered acceptable 

in relation to the wellbeing of the River Wye SAC catchment. 

 
Natural Environment 

 

Policy DM2 of the LDP states that proposals shall demonstrate how they protect, 

positively manage and enhance biodiversity and geodiversity interests. Proposals which 

would impact on natural environment assets will only be permitted where they do not 

unacceptably adversely affect those assets. This is further emphasised within TAN5 

(Nature Conservation and Planning). 

Consideration has been given as to whether the proposed development would have a 

potential detrimental impact upon a natural environment asset. It is noted that the 

proposed development is temporary and does not increase the build or hard standing 

area of the site. It is therefore considered that the development would be unlikely to have 

a detrimental impact on a natural environment asset. 

In accordance with Part 1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016, Local 

Authorities are required to maintain and enhance biodiversity through all its functions – 

this includes the planning process. As part of the application, biodiversity enhancements 

have not been directly proposed. It is considered that this may be overcome with a 

carefully worded condition to ensure the provision of 1No. bird/bat box on the site of 

development. 

 

In light of the above it is considered that the proposed development would not result in 

any negative impacts to biodiversity at the site or in the wider environment and therefore 

complies with Policy DM2 of the LDP. 

 
RECOMMENDATION-Conditional Consent 
 
In light of the above it is considered that the proposed development fundamentally 

complies with relevant planning policy and the recommendation is one of conditional 

consent. 

Tudalen 84



 
Conditions 

1. This permission being retrospective as prescribed by Section 73(a) of the Town 

and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) shall be deemed to take effect from 

the date of consent.  

 

2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 

plans and documents:  2210.PS.02; 2210.PS.BLOCK; 2210.PS.OS; 2210.PS.01; 

document known as ‘PLANNING & DESIGN STATEMENT’ prepared by Darren 

Mills Architect. 

  

3.  The catering unit shall be used for no more than 36 calendar months from the date 

of this permission with the catering unit removed and the site restored to its 

previous condition by: XXXX 

 

4. Within 3 weeks from the date of this permission a scheme to amend the signing 

on the trailer shall be submitted to, and shall be approved in writing, by the Local 

Planning Authority. The scheme shall include a schedule of works and timings for 

the works as approved to then be completed and shall remain as such for the 

length of the permission hereby granted. 

 

5. Within 6 weeks of the date of this permission, 1No. Bird/bat box will be erected on 

the site of development. This measure identified shall be adhered to and 

implemented in full and remain so in perpetuity. 

 
 
Reasons 
 

1. To comply with Section 63 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  

 

2. To ensure adherence to the plans approved by the Local Planning Authority in the 

interests of clarity and a satisfactory development.  

Tudalen 85



 

3. In the interests of the character and appearance of the area in accordance with 

policy DM13 of the LDP.  

 

4. To reduce the visual impact of the development and to protect the visual amenity 

of the streetscape under DM13 of the LDP 

 
5. To comply with Powys County Council’s LDP Policies DM2 and to meet the 

requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, February 2021), TAN 5: Nature 

Conservation and Planning and Part1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 

2016. 

 
Advisory Note 
 

The applicant may need to apply to Dwr Cymru / Welsh Water for any connection to the 
public sewer under S106 of the Water industry Act 1991. If the connection to the public 
sewer network is either via a lateral drain (i.e. a drain which extends beyond the 
connecting property boundary) or via a new sewer (i.e. serves more than one property), 
it is now a mandatory requirement to first enter into a Section 104 Adoption Agreement 
(Water Industry Act 1991). The design of the sewers and lateral drains must also conform 
to the Welsh Ministers Standards for Gravity Foul Sewers and Lateral Drains, and 
conform with the publication "Sewers for Adoption"- 7th Edition. Further information can 
be obtained via the Developer Services pages of www.dwrcymru.com 

The applicant is also advised that some public sewers and lateral drains may not be 
recorded on our maps of public sewers because they were originally privately owned and 
were transferred into public ownership by nature of the Water Industry (Schemes for 
Adoption of Private Sewers) Regulations 2011.  The presence of such assets may affect 
the proposal.  In order to assist us in dealing with the proposal the applicant may contact 
Dwr Cymru Welsh Water to establish the location and status of the apparatus. Under the 
Water Industry Act 1991 Dwr Cymru Welsh Water has rights of access to its apparatus at 
all times. 

__________________________________________________ 
Case Officer: Frances Holms, Planner 
Tel:  E-mail: frances.holms@powys.gov.uk     

Tudalen 86



Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of Way Committee Report 
 

Application 
Number: 

22/0510/FUL Grid Ref: E: 317874 
N: 329184 

Community 
Council: 

 Llansilin Community Valid Date: 21.03.2022 

 
Applicant: Mr B Davies 
 
Location: Nant Hirwaun, Moelfre, Oswestry, Powys, SY10 7QW.  
 
Proposal: Barn Conversion to a residential holiday unit and associated works 
 
Application Type: Full Application 
 
 
The reason for Committee determination 
 
The applicant is an elected member for Powys County Council. 
 
 
Consultee Responses 
 
Consultee Received 

 
Hafren Dyfrdwy 29th Mar 2022 

As the proposal has minimal impact on the public sewerage system I can advise we have 
no objections to the proposals and do not require a drainage condition to be applied. 

 

PCC-(N) Highways 29th Mar 2022 

Thank you for consulting the Highway Authority on this planning application at Nant 
Hirwaun Moelfre Oswestry Powys SY10 7QW. The proposal seeks barn conversion to a 
residential holiday unit and associated works. 

This site is remote from local facilities and the immediate highway network which serve it 
is constrained. Access to the site would be gained via the existing access off C2208. 

The C2208 is constrained by its width and availability of adequate passing bays. The 
Highway Authority notes that the applicant has offered no mitigation to this. It is our view 
that the scheme is over-reliant upon the existing 'Informal Passing Bays' of which, by virtue 

Tudalen 87

4.4



of their scale, siting and form, fail to mitigate the aforementioned constraints and provide 
satisfactory refuge for the safe passing of vehicles. Vehicles need to reverse reasonable 
distances when met by on-coming traffic, including at times when rear visibility is obscured 
by reason of the vertical and/or horizontal alignment of the highway. 

The existing access is substandard in terms of visibility in both directions, the highway 
verge to the southwest of the access exceeds 600mm, radii, no bound material in the area 
of the access and no means of draining the access. We note the access track gives access 
to a previously consented development for education centre and agricultural budlings and 
t will also serve the current development. 

We note that the applicant controls sufficient frontage to which improvements can be made, 
therefore, should the Local Planning Authority be minded approving the application the 
Highway Authority wish the following conditions to be attached to any such consent. 

1. No other development shall commence until the access has been constructed so 
that there is clear visibility from a point 1.05 metres above ground level at the centre of the 
access and 2.4 metres distant from the edge of the adjoining carriageway, to points 0.6 
metres above ground level at the edge of the adjoining carriageway and 34 metres distant 
in each direction measured from the centre of the access along the edge of the adjoining 
carriageway. Nothing shall be planted, erected or allowed to grow on the area(s) of land so 
formed that would obstruct the visibility and the visibility shall be maintained free from 
obstruction for as long as the development hereby permitted remains in existence. 

2. Upon formation of the visibility splays as detailed above the centreline of any new 
or relocated hedge should be positioned not less than 1.0 metre to the rear of the visibility 
splay and retained in this position as long as the development remains in existence. 

3. Prior to the occupation of the dwelling the area of the access to be used by vehicles 
is to be finished in a 40mm bituminous surface course material or (a suitably bound material 
which is to be approved in writing by the LPA) for a distance of 5.5 metres from the edge 
of the adjoining carriageway. This area will be maintained to this standard for as long as 
the development remains in existence. 

4. No surface water drainage from the site shall be allowed to discharge onto the 
county highway. 

5. Prior to any works being commenced on the development site the applicant shall 
construct one passing bay along the C2208 county highway in a location to be agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 

6. The passing bay referred to above shall be constructed to adoptable standard prior 

Tudalen 88



first beneficial/operational use of the development hereby approved. 

Advisory Notes 

NOTE: THE ATTENTION OF THE APPLICANT MUST BE DRAWN TO RELATED 
HIGHWAYS LEGISLATION WHICH MAKES PROVISION FOR THE FOLLOWING; 

1. Under Section 184 of the Highways Act 1980, it is a requirement that a licence is 
obtained from the Highway Authority, in addition to Planning Permission, for vehicular 
access works.   

a. The need to avoid interference with and to make provision for the carrying of existing 
highway drainage under the access to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority. 

b. The requirement of the Highway Authority for the Developer to ensure that no 
surface water is discharged onto the County Highway or, without prior approval, into the 
highway drainage system. 

2. Under Section 50 of the New Roads & Street Works Act 1991 it is a requirement that 
a Streetworks licence is obtained from the Highway Authority to place, or to retain, 
apparatus in the highway and thereafter to inspect, maintain, adjust, repair, alter or renew 
the apparatus, change its position or remove it.   

3. Under section 171 of the Highways Act 1980 it is a requirement that a licence is 
obtained from the Highway Authority, in addition to Planning Permission, for the creation of 
passing bays or highway re-alignment works.   

4. The need to inform and obtain the consent of Statuary Undertakers (Electricity, 
Water, Gas, BT), Land Drainage Authority, etc. to the works. 

5. The New Roads & Street Works Act 1991 requires that all works, be properly notified 
and approved prior to commencement.   

Further advice on the above highway matters can be obtained from:- 

http://www.powys.gov.uk/en/roads-transport-parking/  

street.works@powys.gov.uk  

Street Works 

Powys County Hall 

Spa Road East 

Llandrindod Wells 

Tudalen 89



Powys 

LD1 5LG 

0845 6027035 

 

Environmental Protection 24th Mar 2022 

Foul drainage 

The proposal is for a new septic tank and drainage field system.  It is important to establish 
whether the ground conditions are suitable and that there is sufficient space available for 
the system.  Therefore, please can the applicant/agent submit the results of percolation 
tests, carried out in accordance with the methodology in approved document H2 of the 
Building Regulations, to demonstrate these requirements? 

 

Environmental Protection Additional Comments received 5th Apr 2022 

I can confirm that the results demonstrate the ground conditions are suitable and there is 
sufficient area for its implementation.  Therefore, I have no objection to the application. 

  

PCC-Ecologist 8th Apr 2022 

Holding objection - further information is required to be submitted prior to determination of 
the application. 

Policy background: 

o Planning Policy Wales, Edition 11, 2021 

o Technical Advice Note (TAN) 5 

o Powys Local Development Plan 2011 - 2026:  

DM2 - The Natural Environment 

DM4 - Landscape  

DM7 - Dark Skies and External Lighting 

o Powys Supplementary Planning Guidance: Biodiversity and Geodiversity (2018) 

Tudalen 90



Legislative background: 

o The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) 

o Environment (Wales) Act 2016 

Statutory sites within 500m:  

o N/A 

Non-statutory sites within 500m: 

o Ancient Woodland Inventory Site (Plantation on Ancient Woodland site) located 
within approximately 450m south-east of the proposed development. 

Records of protected and/or priority species identified within 500m?  

o Yes - (6 records) 

Comments 

No ecology information has been submitted to support this planning application. 

From reviewing the submitted information and photographs provided by the applicant's 
agent I am of the opinion that in light of the construction and condition of the existing 
structure there is extremely limited potential for the barn to support roosting bats and that 
the proposed change of use of the 2nd floor from storage to a holiday unit will not result in 
any impacts to roosting bats and therefore it would not be necessary to require a bat survey 
to be undertaken to inform the application.  

Biodiversity enhancement: 

In accordance with Part 1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 Local Authorities 
are required to Maintain and Enhance biodiversity through all its functions - this includes 
the planning process. The Welsh Government letter to Chief Planning Officers dated 23rd 
October 2019 has also clarified the necessity for developments to include biodiversity 
enhancement measures prior to determination of applications.  

Having reviewed the Proposed Elevations shown within the Proposed Floor and Elevation 
Plan drawing no. GD-MZ780-05 produced by Roger Parry & Partners dated 21/03/2022 I 
note that the proposals include the provision of two bird boxes on the gable ends of the 
barn. The inclusion of these features is welcomed and would contribute to increasing 
features of biodiversity value at the site. The details provided regarding location of nest box 
features are considered to be appropriate and implementation of these measures should 
be secured through an appropriately worded condition. 

Tudalen 91



Tree and Hedgerow Protection Plan 

The submitted plans identify that works will be undertaken in close proximity to the retained 
trees that exist onsite - of particular note is the proximity of the proposed area of 
hardstanding (parking and turning area) and septic tank and associated soakaway to 
retained trees within the site - the submitted plans identify that the proposed area of 
hardstanding would significantly encroach into the root zone of at least one retained tree. 
Given the nature of the proposed works required in close proximity to these features it is 
considered prudent to require information as to how these features of biodiversity 
importance will be impacted by the proposals and subsequently protected during the 
construction phase in order to ensure no significant harm. 

It is therefore considered necessary that an Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA) is 
undertaken by a suitably qualified professional and that this is used to identify a Tree 
Protection Plan, this information will need to be submitted prior to determination of the 
application. If in light of the AIA it becomes apparent that a suitable protection plan cannot 
be identified and it is deemed that the impact of the construction would result in significant 
harm to the any trees which may result in their loss to accommodate the proposals, then it 
will be necessary to identify appropriate compensation for this biodiversity loss. 

 

External lighting: 

No details with regards to any proposed external lighting has been included within the 
application details.  

Given the rural nature of the site if it is proposed to include external lighting within the 
proposed development then careful consideration will need to be given to any external 
lighting design to minimise impacts to nocturnal wildlife commuting and foraging in the local 
area.  

Any external lighting proposed will need to demonstrate compliance with the 
recommendations outlined in the BCT and ILP Guidance Note 8 Bats and Artificial Lighting 
(12th September 2018) full details can be found at 
https://www.theilp.org.uk/documents/guidance-note-8-bats-and-artificial-lighting/. In 
addition, any proposed external lighting must avoid conflict with the identified enhancement 
measures and existing/proposed wildlife corridors. 

Controls could be exercised through an appropriately worded planning condition, however 
as additional information has been identified as required to be submitted prior to 
determination of the application, the applicant may wish to submit a Wildlife Sensitive 
Lighting Plan at this stage to avoid the need to submit information to discharge a condition 

Tudalen 92



at a later date. 

Sustainable Drainage System Approval Body (SAB): 

It should be noted that in addition to planning approval the proposed development will 
require approval from the Sustainable Drainage System Approval Body (SAB) prior to any 
construction works commencing onsite - i.e. new developments of more than 1 house or 
the area of the Project proposals with drainage implications is likely to exceed 100m2 
(including access tracks, areas of hard standing etc.).  

Standard 5 of the SAB seeks to ensure that, wherever possible the identified SUDs scheme 
makes the best use of the site to maximise benefits for biodiversity (as well as for amenity, 
water quantity and water quality).  

 

Further information required prior to determination: 

i. Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Tree Protection Plan 

ii. External Lighting Plan 

 

Subject to inclusion of the conditions below, would the development result in a significant 
negative effect on biodiversity?  

o N/A – Further information is required.  

 

PCC-(N) Land Drainage 25th Mar 2022 

PCC Land Drainage have no comments to make on this application at this time. 

However, the SuDS Approval Body (SAB) deem that the proposed hardstanding area is 
greater than 100m2 and therefore this proposed development will require SAB approval 
prior to any construction works commencing onsite.  

Please contact the SAB Team on 01597 826000 or via email sab@powys.gov.uk     

For further information on the requirements of SAB and where relevant application 
forms/guidance can be accessed, please visit the following website 
https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5578/Sustainable-Drainage-Approval-Body-SAB   

If for any reason you believe your works are exempt from the requirement for SAB approval, 

Tudalen 93



we would be grateful if you would inform us so we can update our records accordingly. 

The requirement to obtain SAB consent sits outside of the planning process but is 
enforceable in a similar manner to planning law. It is a requirement to obtain SAB consent 
in addition to planning consent. Failure to engage with compliant SuDS design at an early 
stage may lead to significant unnecessary redesign costs. 

 

Natural Resources Wales (Mid Wales) DPAS 1st Apr 2022 

We have reviewed the planning application submitted to us, and from the information 
provided we do not consider that the proposed development affects a matter listed on our 
Consultation Topics, Development Planning Advisory Service: Consultation Topics 
(September 2018):  https://naturalresources.wales/guidance-and-advice/business-
sectors/planning-and-development/our-role-in-planning-and-development/our-role-in-
planning-and-development/?lang=en. We therefore do not have any comment to make on 
the proposed development.  

Please note that our decision not to comment does not rule out the potential for the 
proposed development to affect other interests, including environmental interests of local 
importance.  

The applicant should be advised that, in addition to planning permission, it is their 
responsibility to ensure that they secure all other permits/consents relevant to their 
development. 

  

Community Council  

No comments had been received at the date of writing this report 

 

PCC-Building Control 24th Mar 2022 

Building Regulations application required. 

 

Ward Councillor  

No comments had been received at the date of writing this report. 

 

Tudalen 94



PCC-Contaminated Land Officer 5th Apr 2022 

The application proposal involves the conversion of an agricultural building to form a 
residential unit. Agricultural buildings and land could contain potential sources of 
contamination, depending on what they were used for in the past, such as: pesticides, fuels 
and oils, slurry tanks and pits, fire sites, animal burial pits or other buried waste, fertiliser, 
sheep dip pits, asbestos, old machinery, waste chemical drums and ammunition. Any 
building constructed before 2000 may have asbestos products which should be considered. 

2. Paragraph 6.9.14, of Chapter 6 'Distinctive and Natural Places', of the  

Welsh Government document 'Planning Policy Wales' (2018) states:  

"Responsibility for determining the extent and effects of surface and subsurface risks 
remains with the developer. It is for the developer to ensure that the land is suitable for the 
development proposed, as a planning authority does not have a duty of care to 
landowners." 

3. In respect of contaminated land paragraph 5.55, of the Welsh Government (WG) circular 
'The Use of Planning Conditions for Development Management' (ref: WGC 016/2014), 
states that: "Conditions might also be imposed requiring the developer to draw to the 
attention of the planning authority the presence of significant unsuspected contamination 
encountered during redevelopment". 

Furthermore, in paragraph 5.56 of the WG circular (ref: WGC 016/2014) it is stated: "The 
level of work required must be proportionate to the problems that are envisaged and the 
more onerous conditions should not be imposed as a matter of course. "Based on the 
available information and current planning guidance, it is recommended that the following 
condition and note, to the applicant, are attached to any permission granted for planning 
application: 

Potential Contamination  

In the event that the presence of contamination is encountered when carrying out the 
approved development immediate contact must be made with the local planning authority 
and works must cease in that area. An investigation and risk assessment must be 
undertaken and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared, 
which is subject to the approval in writing of the local planning authority.  

Following completion of the remedial works identified in the approved remediation scheme, 
a verification report that demonstrates compliance with the agreed remediation objectives 
and criteria shall be produced, and is subject to the written approval of the local planning 
authority, prior to commencement of use of the development.  

Tudalen 95



Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors [in accordance with 
policy ____ of the adopted Local Plan (date)]. 

 
Representations 
 
Following the display of a site notice on 28th March 2022, no public representations have 
been received at the time of writing this report. 
 
Planning History 
 

App Ref Description Decision Date 
 
P/2012/0564 Erection of an agricultural 

building (retrospective) 
Consent 27th Jul 2012 

 
P/2013/0264 Change of use and renovation of 

agricultural buildings to an 
education centre, together with 
the erection of extensions, raising 
of roof heights and access 
improvements. 

Consent 18th Apr 2013 

 
19/0992/AGR Agricultural Notification for the 

erection of an extension 
Approve 4th Jul 2019 

 
 
Principal Planning Constraints 
 
Open Countryside  
Unrestricted Highway: C2208  
Public Footpath: 242/45/2 Approximately 150m west 
Plantation on Ancient Woodland Site Approximately 500m west 

 
Principal Planning Policies 
 
Policy Policy Description Year Local Plan 

 
PPW Planning Policy Wales 

(Edition 11, February 2021) 
 National Policy 

 
NATPLA Future Wales - The 

National Plan 2040 
 National Policy 

 

Tudalen 96



TAN5 Nature Conservation and 
Planning 

 National Policy 

 
TAN6 Planning for Sustainable 

Rural Communities 
 National Policy 

 
TAN12 Design  National Policy 

 
TAN13 Tourism  National Policy 

 
TAN23 Economic Development  National Policy 

 
TAN24 The Historic Environment  National Policy 

 
DM2 The Natural Environment  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM4 Landscape  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM7 Dark Skies and External 

Lighting 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM13 Design and Resources  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM15 Waste Within 

Developments 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SP7 Safeguarding of Strategic 

Resources and Assets 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
TD1 Tourism Development  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
T1 Travel, Traffic and 

Transport Infrastructure 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGBIO Biodiversity and 

Geodiversity SPG (2018) 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGHE Historic Environment SPG 

(2021) 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGLAN Landscape SPG  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 

Tudalen 97



 
Other Legislative Considerations 
 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998  
Equality Act 2010  
Planning (Wales) Act 2015 (Welsh language)  
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009 
 
 
Officer Appraisal 
 
Site Location and Description 
 
The property is located within the community of Llansilin and is in an area designated as 
open countryside under the Powys Local Development Plan (2018).  The property has 
vehicular access onto the C2208.  The property is located within a rural area with no 
immediate neighbouring residential properties. 
 
This application seeks consent for the conversion of the second floor of the building into 
a 2 bedroom self-catering holiday unit with amenity area and parking area to the rear and 
of the barn.  Access will utilise the existing farm track.  
 
Principle of Development  
 
Policy TD1 of the Powys Local Development Plan states that development proposals for 
tourist accommodation, facilities and attractions, including extensions to existing 
development, will be permitted in the open countryside, where it re-uses a suitable rural 
building and is compatible in terms of location, siting, design and scale and well-integrated 
into the landscape so that it would not detract from the overall character and appearance 
of the area.   
 
New tourist development is encouraged because of its contribution to the economy in 
terms of visitor spending, supporting local business and employment generation.   
 
It is considered that the existing barn is suitable for its intended use as a holiday let, and 
due to the nature of the proposal, only minor alterations to the existing building’s design 
and structure would be necessary. As such, the visual and landscape impact of the 
development would be limited. The building is in generally sound condition and is capable 
of conversion without major or complete reconstruction. Furthermore, it is noted that the 
barn is not listed nor of traditional construction and the proposed development would 
therefore not have an impact on buildings of historic or architectural interest. 
 
In light of the above, and subject to the inclusion of appropriately worded conditions 
removing permitted development rights and limiting the use of the accommodation to a 
holiday let only, it is considered that the principle of development is acceptable on this 
occasion, in compliance with Policy TD1 of the Powys LDP, TAN 6 and TAN 23. This is, 

Tudalen 98



however, subject to a review of the broader material planning considerations, which are 
addressed in-turn below. 
 
Design, Scale and Appearance 
 
With respect to design, specific reference is made to Policy DM13 of the Powys Local 
Development Plan (2011-2026). This policy indicates that development proposals must 
be able to demonstrate a good quality design and shall have regard to the qualities and 
amenity of the surrounding area, local infrastructure and resources.  
 
With regard to the potential impact upon the surrounding landscape, regard must be paid 
to LDP Policy DM4 (Landscape) which states that proposals for new development must 
not, individually or cumulatively, have an unacceptable adverse effect on the valued 
characteristics and qualities of the Powys landscape. 
 
The proposed development seeks to convert part of an existing agricultural building to a 
holiday-let unit, with associated works.  
 
The building comprises a steel portal frame building with timber cladding to walls under a 
metal clad roof which is on various levels. 
 
There are no proposed alterations to the external appearance of the building.  The 
external wall coverings and roof will be retained and windows/doors will utilise the existing 
openings within the building where possible.   
 
The proposed design does incorporate the closing up of an existing opening on the 
southwest elevation of the building, however taking into account the existing architectural 
merit of this part of the building, the proposed changes are considered to be acceptable.  
In this respect, the works required to facilitate the conversion would not to be extensive 
and, on balance, the design is considered acceptable. 
 
It is however noted that no information with regard to external materials and finishes of 
some of the fenestration details have been submitted as part of the application.  Officers 
consider that it is therefore appropriate to attach a condition relating to further details of 
the windows to be submitted prior to the commencement of development.  
 
Subject to the above conditions, it is considered that the proposed conversion scheme 
fundamentally retains the traditional character and appearance of the building and thus 
assimilates within the immediate context and surrounding landscape.  
 
Overall, the design is considered to respect the character of the existing building in 
accordance with LDP Policy DM13. In order to enable consideration of future extensions 
and alterations, that have the potential to impact upon the character and appearance of 
the building, it is recommended that permitted development rights are removed by 
condition. 
 

Tudalen 99



In light of the above it is therefore considered that the proposed development 
fundamentally complies with relevant planning policies and guidance. 
 
Amenity 
 
In considering the impact upon amenities enjoyed by occupiers of neighbouring 
properties, consideration has been given to the adopted Residential Design SPG and 
LDP Policy DM13 (Criterion 11). 
 
The existing barn is located to the north of the main farmstead and farmhouse, which is 
in the control of the applicant. Given that no large-scale extensions or alterations to the 
existing building’s footprint are proposed, it is considered there would be no impact upon 
the dwelling with regard to overbearing and overshadowing effects. It is also noted that 
the main glazing elements from the principal rooms of the conversion would not face 
directly towards the neighbouring dwelling, and therefore it is not considered that there 
will be any increased risk of overlooking.  
 
It is acknowledged that the proposed holiday-let unit will be located above an agricultural 
fodder store and livestock yard and these uses are proposed to continue after the unit 
has been converted.  It is Officer opinion that, as the proposed barn conversion will not 
be for residential use, but to be limited in use to a holiday-let unit by condition attached to 
any grant of planning consent, the residential amenity of the occupiers of the holiday-let 
unit will not be adversely affected. 
 
The Council’s Environmental Protection Team have also been consulted on the proposed 
development and have not raised any concerns. 
 
In light of the above, the development is considered to be acceptable in this regard, and 
compliant with planning policy and guidance. 
 
Highways 
 
Criterion 10 of LDP Policy DM13 states that development proposals should meet all 
highway access requirements (for transport users) and parking standards. This is 
reinforced by Policy T1 (Travel, Traffic and Transport Infrastructure) of the Powys LDP, 
which refers to the transport network implications of development, and the importance of 
highway safety in all development proposals. 
 
The proposed development seeks to gain vehicular access via the existing farm track 
onto the C2208 county highway with a parking area created to the side of the barn 
conversion utilising an existing hardcore area. The Local Highway Authority have been 
consulted on the proposed development and have noted that, subject to the inclusion of 
recommended conditions, they do not raise any objection to the development. It is 
considered that the recommended conditions are commensurate to the scale of the 
development and are necessary and would see the provision of one additional passing 
bay along the county highway to the benefit of all users. 

Tudalen 100



 
In light of the above, and subject to the inclusion of the recommended conditions, the 
proposal is deemed to be acceptable and compliant with planning policy. 
 
Natural Environment 
 
Policy DM2 states that proposals shall demonstrate how they protect, positively manage 
and enhance biodiversity and geodiversity interests. Proposals which would impact on 
natural environment assets will only be permitted where they do not unacceptably 
adversely affect those assets. This is further emphasised within Technical Advice Note 
(TAN) 5. 
 
Protected sites 
 
There are no protected sites within 1km of the proposed development.  There are a 
several parcels of Ancient Woodland within 500 metres of the proposed development.  
However, due to the separation between the proposed development and ancient 
woodland and lack of connectivity, it is Officer opinion that the proposed development will 
not have any adverse effect on these sites. 
 
Protected Species 
 
The application has not been accompanied by any ecological information.  The proposal 
includes the change of use of the second floor of the building to holiday-let use.  Due to 
the construction and condition of the building, being of relatively modern construction, it 
is Officer opinion that the existing building offers negligible opportunities for ingress by 
bats and therefore the proposed development will not have an adverse effect on roosting 
bats or nesting birds.  The County Ecologist has been consulted and has confirmed that 
a preliminary bat roost assessment is not considered necessary in this case.   
 
A ‘Reasonable Avoidance Method Statement and Wildlife Sensitive Lighting Plan’ has 
since been submitted by the applicant, whilst no further comments from the County 
Ecologist have been received at the date of writing this report, the method statement is 
considered to be acceptable.  However, given that the Lighting Plan did not include the 
location of any proposed external lights, it is considered necessary to attach a condition 
to any grant of consent to secure the submission of a detailed external lighting design 
scheme, should any external lighting be proposed. 
 
The County Ecologist also requested that an Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA) was 
completed. Additional information was submitted which confirmed that the hardstanding 
will be as existing with no proposed ground works as part of parking area. In addition, 
aerial imagery shows that the proposed septic tank and soakaway will be located away 
from existing trees.  It is therefore considered that in this instance sufficient information 
has been demonstrated to confirm that no trees would be impacted upon as a result of 
the development. 
 

Tudalen 101



Therefore, subject to the inclusion of suitably worded conditions to any grant of planning 
consent, the development is not considered to conflict with LDP Policy DM2 in respect of 
protected species. 
 
Biodiversity Enhancements 
 
In accordance with Part 1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016, Local 
Authorities are required to maintain and enhance biodiversity through all its functions – 
this includes the planning process. As part of the application, biodiversity enhancements 
have not been directly proposed. It is considered that this may be overcome with a 
carefully worded condition to ensure the provision of 1No. bird/bat box on the site of 
development. 
 
Biodiversity enhancement measures are noted on the submitted proposed elevation plans 
through the inclusion of 2No bird boxes to the side elevations of the building. A suitably 
worded condition securing these enhancement measures should be attached to any grant 
of planning consent and would help to achieve a biodiversity net gain within the site and 
its vicinity. 
 
Subject to the inclusion of a suitably worded condition to the grant of any planning 
permission, this measure is considered appropriate to provide biodiversity enhancement 
in accordance with the Biodiversity SPG and LDP Policy DM2. 
 
Contaminated Land 
 
Agricultural buildings and land could contain potential sources of contamination, 
depending on what they were used for in the past. 
 
The Contaminated Land Officer has recommended a condition be included on any 
granting of consent ensuring that appropriate investigations, risk assessments, and 
remediation is undertaken if contamination is encountered when carrying out the 
development. It is considered that the recommended condition is appropriate and 
necessary.  
 
In light of the above, and subject to the inclusion of an appropriately worded condition, 
the development is considered to be acceptable in this regard, and compliant with 
planning policy and guidance. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
In light of the above assessment, it is considered that the proposed development 
fundamentally complies with relevant planning policy and the recommendation is 
therefore one of conditional consent. 
 
 

Tudalen 102



Conditions 
 
1 The development shall begin no later than five years from the date of this decision 
 
2 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 
plans and documents:  
 
Application Form (dated: 21/03/2022) 
Location Plan (Drawing No.: GD-MZ780-01) 
Proposed Block Plan (Drawing No.: GD-MZ780-02) 
Proposed Floor and Elevation Plan (GD-MZ780-09) 
Proposed Floor and Elevation Plan (GD-MZ780-07) 
Proposed Floor and Elevation Plan (GD-MZ780-05) 
Planning Statement  
Reasonable Avoidance Method Statement and Wildlife Sensitive Lighting Plan  
 
3. Before the first beneficial use of the development hereby approved, no fewer than 
2No. bird boxes are to be installed at least 3m from the ground, as shown on the Proposed 
Floor and Elevation Plans (Drawing Nos.: GD-MZ780-05, GD-MZ780-07 and GD-MZ780-
09) and shall be retained thereafter in perpetuity.  
 
4. The development shall be undertaken in strict accordance with the recommended 
mitigation measures for bats and nesting birds set out in Reasonable Avoidance Method 
Statement and Wildlife Sensitive Lighting Plan. The measures identified shall be adhered 
to and implemented in full. 
 
5. No external lighting shall be installed unless a detailed external lighting design 
scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The external lighting scheme shall identify measures to avoid impacts on nocturnal 
wildlife, including bats and otter, in accordance with the recommendations outlined in the 
BCT and ILP Guidance Note 8 Bats and Artificial Lighting (12th September 2018). The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
6. Notwithstanding the detail shown on Drawing Nos.: GD-MZ780-05, GD-MZ780-07 
and GD-MZ780-09, no development shall commence until full details (including elevation 
drawings and manufacturers details) of all external fenestration have been submitted to, 
and approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. The details as approved shall 
be implemented in full and retained in perpetuity. 

 
7. No other development shall commence until the access has been constructed so 
that there is clear visibility from a point 1.05 metres above ground level at the centre of 
the access and 2.4 metres distant from the edge of the adjoining carriageway, to points 
0.6 metres above ground level at the edge of the adjoining carriageway and 34 metres 
distant in each direction measured from the centre of the access along the edge of the 
adjoining carriageway. Nothing shall be planted, erected or allowed to grow on the area(s) 
of land so formed that would obstruct the visibility and the visibility shall be maintained 

Tudalen 103



free from obstruction for as long as the development hereby permitted remains in 
existence. 

 
8. Upon formation of the visibility splays as detailed above the centreline of any new 
or relocated hedge should be positioned not less than 1.0 metre to the rear of the visibility 
splay and retained in this position as long as the development remains in existence. 
 
9. Prior to the occupation of the holiday accommodation the area of the access to be 
used by vehicles is to be finished in a 40mm bituminous surface course material or (a 
suitably bound material which is to be approved in writing by the LPA) for a distance of 
5.5 metres from the edge of the adjoining carriageway. This area will be maintained to 
this standard for as long as the development remains in existence. 
 
10. No surface water drainage from the site shall be allowed to discharge onto the 
county highway. 

 
11. Prior to any works being commenced on the development site the applicant shall 
construct one passing bay along the C2208 county highway in a location to be agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
12. In the event that the presence of contamination is encountered when carrying out 
the approved development immediate contact must be made with the local planning 
authority and works must cease in that area. An investigation and risk assessment must 
be undertaken and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be 
prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the local planning authority.  
 
Following completion of the remedial works identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report that demonstrates compliance with the agreed remediation 
objectives and criteria shall be produced, and is subject to the written approval of the local 
planning authority, prior to commencement of use of the development.  
 
13. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (Amendment) (Wales) Order 2013, (or any Order revoking and 
re-enacting that Order) no development under Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A to E other 
than that hereby permitted shall be carried out without the written permission of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
14. The development shall be occupied as holiday accommodation only and shall not 
be occupied as a person’s sole or main place of residence. An up to date register shall 
be kept at the holiday accommodation hereby permitted and be made available for 
inspection by the local planning authority upon request. The register shall contain details 
of the names of all of the occupiers of the accommodation, their main home addresses 
and their date of arrival and departure from the accommodation. 
 
 
Reasons 

Tudalen 104



 
1 Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
2 To ensure adherence to the plans stamped as approved in the interests of clarity 
and a satisfactory development. 
 
3 To comply with Policies DM2, DM4 and DM13 of the Powys Local Development 
Plan in relation to The Natural Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning 
Policy Wales (Edition 11, 2021), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part 1 
Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
 
4. To comply with Policies DM2, DM4 and DM13 of the Powys Local Development 
Plan in relation to The Natural Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning 
Policy Wales (Edition 11, 2021), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part 1 
Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
 
5. To comply with Policies DM2, DM4 and DM13 of the Powys Local Development 
Plan in relation to The Natural Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning 
Policy Wales (Edition 11, 2021), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part 1 
Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
 
6. In the interests of the visual amenity of the area and to ensure the satisfactory 
appearance of the building, in accordance with the requirements of Policy DM13 of the 
Powys LDP, Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11) and TAN 12 (Design). 
 
7. In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policies DM13 and T1 of the 
Powys Local Development Plan (2018) and Technical Advice Note (TAN) 18: Transport 
(2017). 
 
8. In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policies DM13 and T1 of the 
Powys Local Development Plan (2018) and Technical Advice Note (TAN) 18: Transport 
(2017). 

 
9. In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policies DM13 and T1 of the 
Powys Local Development Plan (2018) and Technical Advice Note (TAN) 18: Transport 
(2017). 

 
10. In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policies DM13 and T1 of the 
Powys Local Development Plan (2018) and Technical Advice Note (TAN) 18: Transport 
(2017). 

 
11. In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policies DM13 and T1 of the 
Powys Local Development Plan (2018) and Technical Advice Note (TAN) 18: Transport 
(2017). 
 
12. To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 

Tudalen 105



neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
policy DM10 of the adopted Local Plan (2018). 

 
13. In order to control further development which has the potential to have adverse 
effects on privacy and/or amenity in contradiction to policy DM13 of the Powys Local 
Development Plan and Powys Residential Design Guide 2020 SPG. 

 
14. To ensure that the development is not used as a permanent residential 
accommodation contrary to policy TD1 of the Powys Local Development Plan (2018). 

 
 
Informative Notes 
 
1. Ecology 
 
Bats - Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and The Conservation of 
Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) 
 
It is an offence for any person to: 
• Intentionally kill, injure or take any bats. 
• Intentionally or recklessly damage, destroy or obstruct access to any place that a 
bat uses for shelter or protection. This is taken to mean all bat roosts whether bats are 
present or not.  
 
Under the Habitats Regulations it is an offence to: 
• Damage or destroy a breeding site or resting place of any bat. This is an absolute 
offence - in other words, intent or recklessness does not have to be proved.  
 
The applicant is therefore reminded that it is an offence under the Wildlife and Countryside 
Act 1981 (as amended) and The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 
(as amended) that works to trees or buildings where that work involves the disturbance 
of a bat is an offence if a licence has not been obtained from Natural Resources Wales. 
If a bat is discovered while work is being undertaken, all work must stop and advice sought 
from Natural Resources Wales and the Council's Ecologist. You can also call the National 
Bat helpline on 0345 1300 228 or email enquiries@bats.org.uk 
 
 
Birds - Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) 
 
All nesting birds, their nests, eggs and young are protected by law and it is an offence to: 
• intentionally kill, injure or take any wild bird  
• intentionally take, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird whilst it is in use or 
being built  
• intentionally take or destroy the egg of any wild bird 

Tudalen 106

mailto:enquiries@bats.org.uk


• intentionally (or recklessly in England and Wales) disturb any wild bird listed on  
 
Schedule1 while it is nest building, or at a nest containing eggs or young, or disturb the 
dependent young of such a bird.   
 
The maximum penalty that can be imposed - in respect of a single bird, nest or egg - is a 
fine of up to 5,000 pounds, six months imprisonment or both.  
 
The applicant is therefore reminded that it is an offence under the Wildlife and Countryside 
Act 1981 (as amended) to remove or work on any hedge, tree or building where that work 
involves the taking, damaging or destruction of any nest of any wild bird while the nest is 
in use or being built, (usually between late February and late August or late September 
in the case of swifts, swallows or house martins). If a nest is discovered while work is 
being undertaken, all work must stop and advice sought from Natural Resources Wales 
and the Council's Ecologist. 
 
 
2 Building Control  
 
Please be aware that the proposed works will require Building Regulations approval. 
Should you wish to discuss the project please do not hesitate to contact Paul on 
paul.metcalf@powys.gov.uk or 07876216734 
 
 
3 County Highways Authority 
 
1. Under Section 184 of the Highways Act 1980, it is a requirement that a licence is 
obtained from the Highway Authority, in addition to Planning Permission, for vehicular 
access works.   

a. The need to avoid interference with and to make provision for the carrying of 
existing highway drainage under the access to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority. 

b. The requirement of the Highway Authority for the Developer to ensure that no 
surface water is discharged onto the County Highway or, without prior approval, into the 
highway drainage system. 

2. Under Section 50 of the New Roads & Street Works Act 1991 it is a requirement 
that a Streetworks licence is obtained from the Highway Authority to place, or to retain, 
apparatus in the highway and thereafter to inspect, maintain, adjust, repair, alter or renew 
the apparatus, change its position or remove it.   

3. Under section 171 of the Highways Act 1980 it is a requirement that a licence is 
obtained from the Highway Authority, in addition to Planning Permission, for the creation 
of passing bays or highway re-alignment works.   

Tudalen 107



4. The need to inform and obtain the consent of Statuary Undertakers (Electricity, 
Water, Gas, BT), Land Drainage Authority, etc. to the works. 

5. The New Roads & Street Works Act 1991 requires that all works, be properly 
notified and approved prior to commencement.   

Further advice on the above highway matters can be obtained from:- 

http://www.powys.gov.uk/en/roads-transport-parking/  

street.works@powys.gov.uk  

Street Works 

Powys County Hall 

Spa Road East 

Llandrindod Wells 

Powys 

LD1 5LG 

0845 6027035 

 
5. Land Drainage 
 
As the construction area is greater than 100m2, the proposed development will require 
SAB approval prior to any construction works commencing on-site. 
 
Please contact the SAB Team on 01597 826000 or via email sab@powys.gov.uk 
For further information on the requirements of SAB and where relevant application 
forms/guidance can be accessed, please visit the following website 
https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5578/Sustainable-Drainage-Approval-Body-SAB 
 
If for any reason you believe your works are exempt from the requirement for SAB 
approval, we would be grateful if you would inform us so we can update our records 
accordingly. 
 
The requirement to obtain SAB consent sits outside of the planning process but is 
enforceable in a similar manner to planning law. It is a requirement to obtain SAB consent 
in addition to planning consent. Failure to engage with compliant SuDS design at an early 
stage may lead to significant un-necessary redesign costs. 
__________________________________________________ 
Case Officer: Charis Denham, Planner 
Tel: 01597827371 E-mail: charis.denham@powys.gov.uk    

Tudalen 108



2022-05-04 Taxi Licensing Sub-Committee

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE TAXI LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HELD AT 
BY TEAMS ON WEDNESDAY, 4 MAY 2022 

 
PRESENT 
County Councillor D R Price (Chair) 
 
County Councillors L V Corfield, H Lewis and K Lewis 
 

1.  RESOLUTION TO EXCLUDE THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS  
 

RESOLVED that in accordance with Section 100(a)(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 the public and press were excluded from the meeting 
on the grounds that there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information under Paragraphs 12 and 18 of Schedule 12a Part 7 of the 
above Act in respect of the following item[s]. 

 
2.  REVIEW OF A JOINT HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE 

DRIVER'S LICENCE  
 

2.1. Sub-Committee's procedures  
 

The Chair introduced the Sub-Committee and its Clerk. 
 
The Clerk to the Sub-Committee explained the procedures to be followed by the 
Sub-Committee. 
 
2.2. Review of a licence - JD/03/2022  

 
Licence holder – JD/03/2022 and family member 
 
Mr R Bowen, Police Licensing Officer 
 
The Senior Licensing Officer presented the licensing authority’s position as 
outlined in the report [copy filed with the signed minutes].  In response to 
questions from a councillor the Senior Licensing Officer advised that the Sub-
Committee had two courses of action, namely to lift the suspension and reinstate 
the licence or to revoke the licence.   The Senior Licensing Officer advised in 
response to a question that there were no licensing rules regarding entering a 
customer’s home, however a licence holder should always act in a professional 
way at all times.  The Sub-Committee was advised that if it was minded to revoke 
the license, JD/03/2022 could reapply for a licence at any time but a Sub-
Committee would be required to consider the application.  There were no 
questions from JD/03/2022 or the Police Licensing Officer. 
 
The Police Licensing Officer read his report.  He referred to JD/03/2022‘s 
response to the allegations when interviewed and advised that he did not 
consider that he was a fit and proper person to hold a taxi licence.  In response 
to questions from a councillor the Police Licensing Officer advised that the 
allegations had not been rescinded or withdrawn.  As a result, the case could be 
re-opened for investigation.  JD/03/2022 had no questions. 
 
JD/03/2022 addressed the Sub-Committee and apologised for his actions.  He 
stated that he had been a taxi driver for five years and that this was his first 

Tudalen 109

8



2022-05-04 Taxi Licensing Sub-Committee

mistake.  In response to a question from a councillor he advised that he thought 
he was a fit and proper person and that he hoped he could be given a chance to 
prove himself.  
 
In summing up the Senior Licensing Officer advised the Sub-Committee should 
only consider whether JD/03/2022 was a fit and proper person to hold a taxi 
licence.  The Sub-Committee could either lift the suspension and reinstate the 
licence or to revoke the licence.  The Police Licensing Officer reminded the Sub-
Committee of JD/03/2022’s response to the allegations and advised that the 
Sub-Committee had to consider whether he was a fit and proper person to hold a 
taxi licence.  JD/03/2022 advised that he had made a mistake and hoped the 
Sub-Committee could reinstate his licence. 
 
The Clerk to the Sub-Committee advised that JD/03/2022, Senior Licensing 
Officer and Police Licensing Officer would leave the meeting, to allow the Sub-
Committee to consider, in private, the report and the evidence they had heard, 
with the support of the Clerk.  The Senior Licensing Officer would then be 
advised of the Sub-Committee’s decision and she would ring JD/03/2022 with the 
decision. 
 
The Chair thanked all for attending. 
 
RESOLVED Reason for decision 
That the licence held by 
JD/03/2022 be revoked. 
 
 
 

The licence holder is not 
considered to be a ‘fit and proper’ 
(safe and suitable) person to hold 
a Joint Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Driver’s Licence. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

County Councillor D R Price (Chair)

Tudalen 110


	Agenda
	2 Cofnodion y cyfarfod blaeorol
	Minutes , 16/06/2022 Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee

	4 Ceisiadau cynllunio i'w hystyried gan y Pwyllgor.
	4.2 20/2130/FUL Fferm Newbridge, Meifod, Powys SY22 6HS
	4.3 22/0564/FUL Siop Spar, 1 Irfon Terrace, Llanwrtyd LD5 4RB
	4.4 22/0510/FUL Nant Hirwaun, Moelfre, Croesoswallt, Powys SY10 7QW
	8 Cofnodion Is-Bwyllgorau Trwyddedu Tacsis



